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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the Eighth Annual General Meeting of PERUNGUDI REAL ESTATES
PRIVATE LIMITED will be held on Monday, 24™ July, 2023 at 10.30 a.m. (IST) through video

conferencing/ other audio visual means (‘'VC'/ 'OAVM’), at shorter notice, to transact the following
business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the
financial year ended 31" March 2023, including the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31°
March, 2023 and the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for
the year ended on that date together with the reports of the Board of Directors and
Auditors thereon

"RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year
ended 31°" March 2023, including the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31" March, 2023 and the
Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the financial year ended on
that date together with the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon be and
are hereby received, considered and adopted.”

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Arindam Mukherjee (DIN: 08776424), who retires
by rotation and being eligible for re-appointment, offers himself for re-appointment

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof), Mr. Arindam Mukherjee (DIN: 08776424), who
retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby
re-appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation."

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3. Re-designation of Ms. Meera Krishnakumar (DIN: 02179294) from ‘Independent
Director’ to ‘Non-Executive Director’ of the Company, who shall be liable to retirement
by rotation:

The Board of Directors recommends considering and if thought fit, to pass with or without
modification(s) the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT based on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee and Board of Directors and pursuant to applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 read with relevant rules made thereunder, approval of the Members of the Company be
and is hereby accorded for re-designation of Ms. Meera Krishnakumar (DIN: 02179294) from
'Independent Director’ to 'Non-Executive Director' of the Company, liable to retire by rotation,
with effect from 11™ July, 2023.

Corporate Office: 29th Floor, World Trade Canter, Brigade Gateway Campus,
26/1, Dr. Rajkumar Road, Malleswaram - Rojajinagar, Bengaluru - 560 055, India
T: 49180 4137 9200 W: www.brigadegroup.com
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Ms. Meera Krishnakumar shall continue to be paid sitting fees
as approved by the Board of Directors, from time to time.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director or Company Secretary of the Company be and are

hereby severally authorized to do all such acts and deeds that may be necessary and/ or
incidental thereto to give effect to the above resolution.”

Ratification of remuneration payable to M/s. Murthy & Co. LLP, Cost Accountants, Cost
Auditors for the Financial Year 2022-2023:

The Board of Directors recommends considering and if thought fit, to pass with or without
modification(s) the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof), payment of
remuneration not exceeding Rs 75000/- apart from applicable taxes and out of pocket
expenses fo M/s. Murthy & Co. LLP, Cost Accountants (LLP ID No. AAB-1402), appointed as
Cost Auditors by the Board of Directors of the Company for conducting cost audit for the
financial year 2022-2023 (i.e., April 1, 2022 to March 31, 2023) be and is hereby approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director or Company Secretary of the Company be and are
hereby severally authorised to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be necessary, proper
or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

Place: Bangalore By order of the Board
Date: 11™ July, 2023 For Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited
5
Wi
Registered Office: mi BV

5/142, Rajiv Gandhi Salai, OMR Road, Company Secretary
Perungudi, Palavakkam,
Chennai - 600 096
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a) The Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act’) with respect to
the special business set out in the Notice is annexed.

b) The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ('MCA'), Government of India, vide its General Circular No.
14/ 2020 dated 8™ April, 2020, General Circular No. 17/ 2020 dated 13" April, 2020, General
Circular No. 22/ 2020 dated 15™ June, 2020, General Circular No. 33/ 2020 dated 28™
September, 2020, General Circular No. 39/ 2020 dated 31" December, 2020, General Circular
No. 10/ 2021 dated 23™ June, 2021, General Circular No. 20/ 2021 dated 8 December, 2021,
General Circular No. 3/ 2022 dated 5™ May, 2022, and General Circular No. 11/ 2022 dated 28™
December, 2022, issued by the MCA have permitted companies to conduct General Meetings
through Video Conference ('VC') or Other Audio-Visual Means ('OAVM), subject to compliance
of various conditions mentioned therein.

In compliance with the above, AGM of the Company is being held through VC/ OAVM,

¢) Members attending the AGM through VC shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the
quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

d) Inview of AGM being held by VC/ OVAM:
* physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with;

* the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for the AGM
and hence Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice;

* route map for the location of the meeting is also not provided.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR ATTENDING THE MEETING THROUGH VC/OAVM:

a) Shareholders are requested to follow the below procedure to join the AGM:

i. Launch internet browser (Chrome/Firefox/Safari) by typing the
https://usO6web.zoom.us/ /85254194443

il. Enter the following passcode : 358348
lii. After logging in, click on join meeting.

b) Shareholders are encouraged to Join the Meeting through Laptops with Google Chrome for
better experience.
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Item No. 3: Re-designation of Ms. Meera Krishnakumar (DIN: 02179294) from 'Independent
Director’ to ‘Non-Executive Director’ of the Company, who shall be liable to
retirement by rotation:

The Board of Directors, based on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee, approved re-designation of Ms. Meera Krishnakumar (DIN: 02179294) from
‘Independent Director’ to ‘Non-Executive Director of the Company, liable to retirement by rotation,
with effect from 11" July, 2023

The Members to note that in line with Section 149 read with Rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment
and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, the following classes of unlisted public company are
exempted from appointing Independent Directors on the Board:

a) a joint venture;
b) a wholly owned subsidiary; and
¢) adormant company as defined under section 455 of the Act.

Since the Company is a Joint Venture, it is not mandatory to have an Independent Director on the
Board of the Company.

The Board of Directors have approved re-designation of Ms. Meera Krishnakumar from 'Independent
Director' to 'Non-Executive Director' of the Company, liable to retirement by rotation. Ms. Meera
Krishnakumar would continue to receive sitting fees in her capacity as a Non-Executive Director, as
approved by the Board of Directors, from time to time.

Accordingly, Board recommends passing of the proposed resolution stated in Item 3 as a Special
Resolution and requests Members' approval for the same.

Except Ms. Meera Krishnakumar, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Promoters
or their relatives are in any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in this resolution
except to the extent of their shareholding as Members, if any, in the Company.

Item No. 4: Ratification of remuneration payable to M/s. Murthy & Co. LLP, Cost
Accountants, Cost Auditors for the Financial Year 2022-2023:

The Board of Directors, based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, have appointed
M/s. Murthy & Co. LLP, Cost Accountants (LLP ID No. AAB-1402) as the Cost Auditors of the
Company for the financial year 2022-2023 at a remuneration of Rs. 75 000/- apart from applicable
taxes and out of pocket expenses, if any.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)
thereof) any remuneration payable to Cost Auditors has to be approved/ ratified by the Members
of the Company.
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Accordingly, Board recommends passing of the proposed resolution stated in Item 4 as an OrdiBRIGADE
Resolution and requests Members’ approval for the same. Building Positive Experiences
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Promoters or their relatives are in any way

concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in this resolution except to the extent of their

shareholding as Members, if any, in the Company.

Place: Bangalore By order of the Board
Date: 11™ July, 2023 For Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited
\
Registered Office: ashmi BV
5/142, Rajiv Gandhi Salai, OMR Road. Perungudi, Company Secretary

Palavakkam,
Chennai - 600 096
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Dear Members,

We have pleasure in presenting the Eighth Annual Report on business and operations of the
Company together with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the financial year ended

31" March, 2023,

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Total Income 13,092 10,860
Total Expenses 22,826 26,025
Profit/ (Loss) before tax (9,734) (15,165)
Provision for: Current Tax 46 15
Deferred Tax (4,338) -
Net Profit/ (Loss) after Tax (5,442) (15,180)
Other Comprehensive Income - -
Total Comprehensive Income (5,442) (15,180)

(e
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FINANCIAL & OPERATIONAL OVERVIEW:

The total income for the year ended 31" March, 2023 was at Rs. 13,092 lakhs as compared to
Rs. 10,860 lakhs during the previous financial year. The increase in income is primarily on account
of leasing of the commercial space and commencement of the rent for the additional space leased
out,

Your company has incurred a loss of Rs. 5,442 lakhs during the year as compared to Rs. 15,180
lakhs for the previous financial year. The decrease in the losses is due to an increase in leasing
income and recognition of deferred tax on depreciation losses.

The Company has developed an iconic IT/ ITES SEZ project known as “World Trade Center,
Chennai" of over 2 million square feet.

The Company is also in the process of completing a residential project called “Residences @ WTC",
which is adjacent to the IT SEZ development. As on date of this report, all the units in
"Residences @ WTC" are sold.

AMENDMENT TO ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION OF THE COMPANY:
The erstwhile Articles of Association (‘AoA’) of the Company had reference to the salient terms
of the Shareholders Agreement dated 3 March, 2016 notifying the Shareholders of their

covenants.

In line with the First Amendment Agreement to the Shareholders’' Agreement dated 3" March,
2016 executed between Reco Caspia Private Limited, Brigade Enterprises Limited and the

Corporate Office: 29th Floor, World Trade Center, Brigade Gateway Campus,

26/, Dr. Rajkumar Road, Malleswaram - Rajajinagar, Bengalury - 560 055, India

T: +9180 4137 9200 W: www.brigadegroup.com
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The approval from the Members of the Company was sought in the Extra-Ordinary General
meeting held on 15™ December, 2022.

SUBSIDIARIES/ JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCTATES:

The Company is a subsidiary of Brigade Enterprises Limited. Company does not have any
subsidiaries/ joint ventures/ associates.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES AND DIVIDEND:

During the year, the Company has not transferred any amount to reserves or recommended any
dividend for the Financial Year ended on 315 March, 2023,

DEPOSITS:

The Company has not accepted any deposits in terms of Chaprer V of the Companies Act, 2012
read with the Companies {Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014, during the year and accordingly, no
amount is outstanding as on the Balance Sheet date.

SHARE CAPITAL & ISSUE OF SECURITIES:

During the yzar, there was no change in the share capital of the Company.

The paid-up share capital of the Company is Rs. 124,80,00 000 (Rupees One Twenty Four Crore
Eighty Lakhs only) comprising of:

a) Rs. 10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Lakh Only) divided into 1,00,000 Class A Equity Shares of Rs.
© 10/- each.

b) Rs. 62,30,10,000/- (Rupees Sixty Two Crore thirty Lakh And Ten Thausand only) divided into
6,23.01,000 Class B8 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each.

¢) Rs. 62,16,80,000/- (Rupees Sixty Two Crore Sixteen Lakh And Eighty Thousand only) divided
into 6,21,68,000 Class C Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each.

d) Rs. 23,10,000/- (Rupees Twenty Three Lakhs 4And Ten Thousand only) divided into 23,100 A
Series Cumulative Convertible Preference Sherzs of Rs. 100/- each.

DEBENTURE CAPITAL AND ISSUANCE OF NON - CONVERTIBLE DERENTURES:
The tetal Debenture Structure of the Compony as on 315" March, 2023 are as follows:
a) 2,37,64,800 12% A Series Optionally Convertible Debentures (OCD's) of Rs. 100/- each

(Rupees Hundred Only) each agaregating to Rs. 2,37 64,80 000/- (Rupees Two Hundred Thirty
Seven Crores Sixty Four Lakhs and Eighty Thousand Only) to Brigade Enterprises Limited.
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2,37,55,200 12% A Series Fully Convertible Debentures (FCD's) of Rs. 100/- (Rupees Hundr'BeBIGADE

Only) each aggregating to Rs. 2,37 55 20 GO0 (Rupees Two Hundred Thirty Seven Crorggliﬂ?‘f&smw EASHO

¢)

d}

0

f)

9)

h)

J)

k)

m)

Five Lakhs and Twenty Thousand Only) to Reco Caspia Private Limited.

5,00,000 12% A1l Series Optionally Convertibie Debentures (OCD's) of Rs. 100/- (Rupees
Hundrad Only) each aggregating to Rs.5,00,00,003/- (Rupees Five Creres Only) to Brigade
Enterprises Limited.

5,00000 12% A1l Series Fully Convertible Debentures (FCD's) of Rs. 100/- (Rupees Hundred
Only) each aggregating o Rs.5,00,00,000/- (Rupzes Five Crores Only) to Reco Caspia Private
Limited

15,00,000 12% A12 Series Optionaily Convertible Debentures (OCD's) of Rs. 100/- (Rupees
Hundred Orily) each aggregating to Rs.15,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifteen Crores Only) to Brigade
Enterprises Limited.

15,00,6C0 12% A12 Series Fully Convertible Debentures (FCD's) of Rs. 100/- (Rupees Hundred
Only) each aggregating to Rs. 15,00 00 000/- (Rupees Fifteen Crores Only) to Reco Caspia
Private Limited.

3000000 12% A Series Unsecured Unlisted Non-Convertible Debentures (NCD's) of
Ps. 100/- (Rupees Hundred Only) ecch eggregating to Rs.30,00,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty
Crores Only) to Brigade Enterprises Limited.

30,00,000 12% A Series Unsecured Unlisted Nen-Convertible Debentures (NCD's) of
Rs, 100/- (Rupees Hundred Orly) ecch aggregating Yo Rs.30,00,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty
Crores Only) to Reco Iris Private Limitec.

15,00,000 12% B Series Unsecured Unlisted Non-Convertible Debentures (NCD's) of Rs. 100/-
(Rupees Hundred Only) each aggregating to Rs.15,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fiftezn Crores ‘Only)
to Brigade Enterprises Limited.

15,00,000 12% B Series Unszcured Unlisted Non-Cenvertible Debentures (NCD's) of Rs. 100/-
(Rupees Hundred Only) each aggregating 1o Rs.15,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifteen Crores Cnly)
to Reco Iris Private Limited. '

50,00,000 12% B(I) Series Unsecured Unlisted Non-Convertible Debentures (NCD'z) of
Rs. 100/- (Rupees Hundred Orly) each aggreaating to R<.50,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifteen
Crores Only) to Brigade Enterprises Limited.

50,0C,000 12% B(T) Series Unsecured Unlisted Non-Convertible Debentures (NZD's) of
Ps. 100/- (Rupees Hundred Only} each aggregating to Rs50,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifteen
Crores Only) to Reco Iris Private Limitec

35,00,000 i2% B(II) Series Unsecurea Unlisted Non-Convertible Debentures (NCD's) of
Rs. 100/- (Rupees Hundred Only) each eggregating to Rs.35,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifteen
Crores Only) to Brigade Enterprises Limited.
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n) 35,000,000 12% B(II) Series Unsecured Unlisted Non-Convertible Debentures (NCD'_S_BOEIGADE_
Rs.100/- (Rupezs Hundred Only) each aggregeting to Rs.35.00,00000/- (Rupees Fiffegn " ""e Experiences
Crores Cnly) to Reco Iris Private Limited.

o) 25,00,000 12.00% C Series Unsecured Unlisted Non-Convertible Debentures ('NCDs') of
Rs. 100/- (Rupees Hundred Only) each aggregating to Rs. 25,00,00,000/- (Rupees Tiwenty-
Five Crores Only) to Brigade Enterprises Limited.

p) 25,000,000 12.00% C Series Unsecured Unlisted Non-Convertible Debentures ("NCDs") of
Rs. 100/- (Rupees Hundred Only) each aggregating to Rs. 25,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty-
Five Crores Only) to Reco Iris Private Limited.

Curing the year under review, Debenture Holder(s) came forward to waive of f debenture interest
for a period of 1year for continued operational and financial cupport. Hence, a moratorium period
of 1year on debenture interest from 1*' July, 2022 to 30™ June, 2023 was approved by the Board
of Directors of the Company.

Further, the Company has served an interest accrued to the extent of Rs. 3G Crores each
(aggregating to Rs. 60 Crores) to Reco Caspia Pte. Limited and Brigade Enterprises Limited against
issue of 'A Series Fully Convertible Debentures’ and 'A Series Optionally Convertitles Debentures’
respectively.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

As at 31*' March, 2023, the Board of Directors of the Company comprises of three Non-Executive
Directors of which two are Independent Directors, The composition is as under and is in due
compliance with the Companies Act, 2013:

' # | Name of the Director | DIN f Designation |
|1 | Mr. Mohan Parvatikar 00235941 I Independent Director i
2 | ‘Ms. Meera Krishna Kumar 02179294 ,: Independent Director ]I

3 | Mr. Arindam Mukherjee 08776424 i Non-Executive Director l

In accordance with the Articles of Associotion of the Company and the provisions of Section
152(6)(e) of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Arindam Mukher jee (DIN: 08776424), Director of the
Company will retire by rotation at-the ensuing Annual Genera! Meeting and being eligible, offers
himself for reappointment,

Your Directors’ reccmmend his re-appointment to the Board.

None of the Directors of the Company are disqualified under Section 164(2) of fhe Companies
Act, 2013,
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During the year under review, the Board of Directors of the Company met 4 times on the following
dates:

Dates on which . Total Strength i No. of
Board Meetings were held i of the Board Directors Present
B 4™ May 2022 , 3 3
20™ July 2022 .3 o 3
2" November 2022 3 3 e B
25™ January 2023 3 3

ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT BOARD MEETINGS/ GENERAL MEETINGS:

The Board of Directors of the Company have attended the Board Meetings/ General Meetings as
per the following details:

’ Name of the Director | Board meetings | Attendance in the | Attendance in the Extra |
attended in Seventh Annual Ordinary General i
the financial General Meeting Meeting held on

year 2022-23 held on 23™ 15™ December, 2022
. ¥ N .5
| Mr. Arindam Mukherjee | 4 Yes Yes
Mr. Mohan Parvatikar 4 No | Yes ]
Ms. Meera Krishrakumar 4 ~Yes . No .y

BOARD EVALUATION:

Annual evaluation of the performance of the Board, its Committees and of individual directors of
the Company for the Financial Year 2022-23 has been made as per the provisions of Cempanies
Act, 2013.

In the Independent Director's Meeting held on 25™ January, 2023, perforinance of the Board as
a whole and the performance of non-independent directors was carried out. Performance
evaluation of the independent directors has been cone by the entire board .excluding the
independent director being evaluatec.

The criteria for evaiuation of performance of Directors and Board/ its Committees is based on
the certain parameters like attendance, interpersonal relation with other directors etc.

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

During the year, Audit Committee met 4 times. The dates on which the said meetings were held
was 4™ May, 2022, 20™ July, 2022, 2™ November, 2022 and 25™ January, 2023.



H/

d'

ﬂ
The composition of the Audit Committee as at 315 March, 2023 and the details of meeTEmGADE

attended by its Members are given below:
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Name of the ] Designation No. of Committee Meetings during the
Committee Members !_ financial year 2022-23
[ Held Attended
Mr Mohan Parvatikar ' Chairman | - I +
Ms. Meera Krishnakumar | Member | 4 & ]
Mr. Arindam Mukherjee | Member | 4

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee.
NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:
During the year, Nominaticn & Remuneration Committes met or. 25" January, 2023.

The composition of the Nomination & Remunerartion Committee as at 31° March, 2023 and the
details of meeting attended by its Members are given belovs:

Name of the Designation | No. of Committee Meetings during the |
Committee Member 5 financial year 2022-23 !

i Held Attznded |

P e ! oyl WO
Ms, Meera Krishnakumar Chairman ' 1 ]'

| Mr. Mohait Parvatikar Member 1 L [ ,
| Mr. Arindam Mukher jee Member | 1 ]'

The Company Secretary acts as the Secrerary of the Committee.
DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Independent Directors of the Cempeny have submitted requisite declarctions confirming that
they continue to meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under Section i149(6) of the
Companies Act, 2013,

POLICY ON DIRECTORS' APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION:

The Company has adopted the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for appointment/ re-
appointment and payment of remuneration to Directors and Key Managerial Personnel. The
Directors of the Company are appointed by the Members at Annual General Meetings in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder.

Censidering that the Company does rot have any Executive Directors, no remuneration is paid in
relation to the same.

Further, independent directors of the Company are entitled for sitting fees of Rs. 20,000/- for
attending each Bocrd Mezting and Rs. 10,000/~ for attending each Committee Meeting. Apart
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from the sitring fees, the Company has not paid any remuneration to its Independent Dir‘ecf&rﬁlGADE
during the year under review.

Building Positive Experiences
As there is only cne employee on the rolls of the Comgany, The remuneration paid/ payable shall
be based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remunzration Committee.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
The Board of Directors hereby confirm that:

a) in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended 31°* March, 2023,
the applicable accounting standards have been foliowed along with proper explanation relating
+o materiai departures:;

b} the Directors had selected such accounting policies cnd applied them consistently and made
Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent <o as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company at the erd of the financial year and of the profit of
the Company for that period;

¢) the Directors had taken proper cnd sufficient carz for the mainfenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

d) the annual finarcial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;

¢) there are proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of a!l apglicable laws were
in place and viere adequate and operating effectively.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, Ms. Rashmi BV,
Company Secretary & Chief Financial Officer and Mr. Thriumanan. R S, Manager are the Key
Manageriai Personnel of the Company.

PARTICULLARS OF EMPLOYEES:

Therz are no employees in the Company who cre in receipt of remuneration in cxcess of the limits
prescribed in Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rule 5(2) end 5(3) of
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managericl Perscnnel) Rules, 2014 during the year.

STATUTORY AUDITORS AND STATUTCRY AUDIT REPORT:

The Members of the Company in the Sixth Annual General Meeting held on 13 August, 2021 have
re-appointed M/s. Batliboi & Associates, LLP as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of
four years i.e., from the conclusion of the Sixth Annual Generai Meeting till the conciusion of
Tenth Annual General Meeting.



There are ro qualifications or adverse remarks in the Statutory Auditors' Report for the financd@RIGADE

statements for the year ended 31" March, 2023 which require any explanation from the2Beardositive Experiences
of Directors.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR AND SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT:

Pursuant to provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company have
appointed Ms. Aarthi G Krishna, Practicing Company Secretary (CP No. 5645) to conduct the
Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2022-2023.

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Secretarial Audit Report which require any
explanation from the Board of Directors.

Secretarial Audit is appended as Annexure 1 to this Report.
COST AUDITORS:

The Board of Directors of the Company have appointed M/s. Murthy & Co. LLP, Cost Accountants
(LLP ID No. AAB-1402) as Cost Auditors for the financial year 2022-2023 at a fees of
Rs. 75,000/~ plus applicable taxes and out of pocket expenses, subject to the ratification of the
said fees by the Members at the Annual General Meeting.

Accordingly, a resolution seeking ratification from the Members of the Company for the
remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor for the financial year 2022-2023 is included in the
Notice convening the Annual General Meeting of the Company.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

The Company has not made any loans, investments or guarantees under Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year 2022-2023.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

The related party transactions undertaken during the financial year 2022-2023 as detailed in
notes to accounts of the financial Statements. The related party transactions are carried at arms’
length basis and in the normal course of business.

ANNUAL RETURN:

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, a copy of the Annual Return of the
Company for the period 31" March, 2023 is uploaded on the holding company's website under the
following link: www.brigadegroup.com.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS:

There were no material changes and commitments for the period under review, which significantly
affects the financial position of the Company.
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SISNIFICANT OR MATERIAL ORDERS:

During the financial year under review, no significant and material orders were passed by the

regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and the Company's operations
in the future.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS:

The Company has adequate internal financial control systems in place with reference to the
financial statements/ reporting.

During the year under review, these controls were evaluated, and no significant weakness was
identified either in the design or operation of the controls.

RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Board of Directors and Audit Committee have been entrusted with the responsibility for
establishing policies to monitor and evaluate risk management systems of the Company.

Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, Internal Auditors of the Company as a part of their scope cover risk
management by evaluation of processes in different functions/ departments of the Company and
the risks associated therewith are presented to the Audit Committee/ Board of Directors on a
quarterly basis.

The Audit Committee and the Board review the business risks and mitigation measures on a
continuous basis independently as well as based on the reports of the Internal Auditors.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

The provisions relating to Corporate Social Responsibility are not applicable to the Company as on
31" March, 2023.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The particulars in respect of conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange
earnings & outgo, as required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is appended as an Annexure 2 to this report,

HUMAN RESOURCES:

There is 1 employee on the rolls of the Company as on 31* March, 2023.
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BRIGADE
DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKRLAGE ositive Experiences
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

As a part of the Policy for Prevention of Sexual Harassment, the Holding Company i.e. Brigade
Enterprises Limited has framed a policy for the Brigade Group and constituted a “Internal
Committee” for prevention and redressal of complaints on sexual harassment of women at work
place in accordance with the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition,
and Redressal) Act, 2013 and relevant rules thereunder.

During the year under review, no instances were reported by any employee of the Company.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/ VIGIL MECHANISM

As a part of Whistle Blower Policy, the Holding Company i.e., Brigade Enterprises Limited has
framed a policy for the Brigade Group as part of vigil mechanism for observing the conduct of
Directors and employees and report concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud
or violation of the Company's Code of conduct to the Ethics Committee members or the Chairman
of the Audit Committee of Holding Company.

This mechanism also provides for adequate safeguards against victimization who avail the
mechanism.

During the year under review, no instances were reported by any employee of the Company.
OTHER DISCLOSURES:

a) Company has complied with all applicable mandatory Secretarial Standards issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India for the financial year ended 315" March, 2023.

b) No frauds were reported by the Auditors as specified under Section 143 of the Companies
Act 2013 for the financial year ended 315" March, 2023,

¢) There are no Corporate Insolvency proceedings initiated against the company under
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

d) There were no significant or material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and Company's operations in future.

e) There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year till the date of this
report.

f) There is no change in the nature of the business of the Company.
g) There are no differential voting rights shares issued by the Company.

h) There were no sweat equity shares issued by the Company.
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS: BRIGADE
Building Positive Experiences

The Directors wish to place on record their appreciation and sincere thanks to all the

stakeholders for the continued support and patronage. We look forward to your support and co-

operation as the Company is entering the next league of growth.

By Order of the Board
For Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited

/ Lo
~ Arindam Mukhgrjee Mohan Parvatikar
Director Director
DIN: 08776424 DIN: 00235941

Place : Bangalore
Date : 11" May, 2023



Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH, 2023
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 201 4]

To,
The Members,
Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited (hereinafter
called the company). Secretarial Audir was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion

thercon.

Based on my verification of the Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited books, papers, minute
books, forms and retumns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the
audir period covering the financial year ended on 31" March, 2023 complied with the staturory
provisions listed hereunder and also thar the Company has proper Board-Processes and

compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made

hereinafrer;

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited (“the Company”) for the financial year
ended on 31* March, 2023 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; *
PREPL/2022-2023



(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to

v)

the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial

Borrowings;

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board

of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- *

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regularions, 2011; *

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
1992.¢

(¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009; *

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 ¢

(¢) The Securitics and Fxchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008; *

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; *

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;
and*

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998*

(vi) Other Laws as are applicable to Real Fstate Development Company:-

L. Indian Contracts Act, 1872, Transfer of Property Act, 1882, Registrarion Actr, 1908, Specific
Relief Act, 1963

2. State Laws such as Stamp Act, Rent Conrrol Act, Municipal Laws, Rules and Procedures

3. Environment (Protection) Act, 1986, Warer (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974

4. Energy Conservation Act, 2001 and other relared State laws such as The Tamil Nadu Lifts,
Acr, 1997,

PREPL/2022-2023



I have also examined compliance with applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

(it) The listing Agreement entered into by the Company with the Stock Exchange(s), if applicable; *

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc, mentioned above.

My opinion is based on audir evidence, explanations and information given to me during the audit
and the Management Representation Letter is support that there were no specific non-compliances

in respect of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, ete., mentioned above.
1 Further Report That

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors®, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition
of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in

compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate Notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, Agenda and detailed
Notes on Agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further informarion and clanifications on the Agenda items before the Meeting and for

meaningful parricipation at the Meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenti ng members’ views are caprured and recorded

as part of the Minutes.

[ Further Report That there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate
with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable

laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

PREPL/2022-2023



I Further Report That during the Audit period the Company has:
- Altered the Articles of Association with approval of the Members on 15% December, 2022.

. Ra ox . AARTHI GOPALA owni sanes oy asiria sorsin
Place : Bengaluru Signature: ity .
Date : 11™ May, 2023 Name of Company Secrerary in practice: Aarthi G Krishna
UDIN: FOO5706F000287493 FCS No.: 5706
CPNo.: 5645

* These Laws/Rules/Regulations/Guidelines/Standards are not applicable as the Company is an Unlisted Subsidiary of a
Listed Company.

A The Company does not have any executive directors, two are Independent Directors and one Director is lable to retire by
rotation

PREPL/2022-2023



To
The Members
Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. My
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. T have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial Records. The verification was done on test
basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. 1 believe that the processes
and practices, | followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts
of the company.

4. Whereever required, | have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws,
rules and regulations and happening of events ete,

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

e egfhalip wyrem by RASTEN COPALA
Place 1 Bcngdluru blgnamrc: ARBTHI GOPALA KHISHNA,  avivina

Dase JOILEL 1} W1 82T

Date : 11" May, 2023 Name of Company Secretary in pracrice: Aarthi G Krishna
FCS No.: 5706
CPNo.: 5645

PREPL/2022-2023
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ANNEXURBBRIGADE
Building Positive Experiences

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:
Steps taken and impact on conservation of energy:

Our goal of energy efficient construction is to limit damage to the ecosystem and reduce the
use of natural resources like energy, land, water and raw materials.

The Company has been taking various energy saving measures in its operations, mainly includes:

* Solar photo voltaic panels have been installed on the roof of the buildings to harness
renewable energy sources to ensure reduced carbon emissions. Power generated from this
is approx. 215 KW.

* The waste water generated out of the property being scientifically treated through well
designed inhouse Sewage treatment plants (STP's). Treated sewage water is utilized in
air-conditioning chillers, dual flushing plumbing system, irrigation, etc. Water reused due
to this process is approx. 6,150 Kilo liters per month.

This reduces the dependency on municipal water supply which is pumped from far off
location, indirectly saving energy and fresh water.

* All chillers (totaling 5,500 TR) are water cooled and this has been done to reduce power
consumption,

* All Air Handling Units (AHU) are fitted with Variable Frequency Drives (VFD) to ensure
reduced power consumption. Maximum AHUs are with plug fans (direct driven) to ensure
less power consumption.

* Installation of energy efficient LED light fittings in the common areas, basements, etc.

* Solar Reflective Index (SRI) is painted on terraces to ensure solar heat reflection and
temperature reduction in top floors.

* Installation and use of waterless urinals to ensure conservation and responsible use of
precious water,

* Provision of charging points for electric vehicles to encourage use of alternative fuel,
thereby reducing dependency on fossil fuels.

* Effective terrace and surface area rainwater harvesting systems are implemented. The
rainwater is collected in underground sumps through garland drains and used for domestic
purposes after suitable treatment. Besides this, excess rainwater is guided to recharge
wells for ground water recharge.

* Low Volatile Organic Compound (VoC) are applied on floors to cater to environmental
friendliness.
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* Total waste recycled during the financial year 2022-2023 is 69 MT and comp&8RIGADE

generated is approx. 6,200 kgs. Building Positive Experiences

* The top layer of excavated earth (which contains beneficial micro-organisms) are stored
separately and used in landscaping.

b) Additional investment and proposals, if any being implemented for reduction in consumption
of energy:

The Company as a matter of policy has a regular and ongoing program for investments in energy
saving devices, wherever possible, used in construction. Studies are being made to reduce

energy consumption and make suitable investments in this area, if necessary.

c) Impact of measures taken at (a) and (b) above for reduction of Energy consumption and
consequent impact of the same:

The impact of the measures taken cannot be quantified as the company is in the construction

field.

d) Total energy consumption and energy consumption per unit as per form - A of the
Annexure to the rules of industries specified in the schedule thereto: Not Applicable.

II. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

The Company works on a mechanized process to reduce cost and increase the efficiency of
the operations.

Modern Technology/ Machinery is used by the Company from time to time to achieve
maximum efficiency in operations.

III. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT:
More standardized building elements which adheres to quality standards
More efficient and effective planning of construction activities for maintaining the quality.

Benefits derived from R&D: The buildings being constructed adhere to the highest standard
of quality.

Expenditure on R&D: It forms part of the project cost and cannot be quantified separately.
IV. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:
* Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows: Nil

* Foreign Exchange outgo in terms of actual outflows: Rs. 22.85 Lakhs towards purchase
of goods.

L2 2 2 3 3



S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP 12th & 13th floor

"UB City"Canberra Block
Chartered Acceuntants No. 24, Vittal Mallya Road

Bengaluru - 560 0U1, India

Tel :+91 124 464 4000

Fax :+91 124 464 4050
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited (“the Company™). which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31. 2023. the Statement of Profit and Loss. including the statement of Other
Comprehensive Income. the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the vear then ended. and
notes to the financial statements. including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us. the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act. 2013. as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India. of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31. 2023. its loss including other comprehensive income. its cash flows and the changes in equity for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs). as specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
“Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Directors’ report. but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements. our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so.
consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If. based on the work we have performed. we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information. we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including
other comprehensive income. cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India. including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015. as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities: selection and application of appropriate accounting policies:
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and the design. implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls. that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records. relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements. management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. disclosing. as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations. or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP, a Limited Liabllity Partnership with LLP Indentity N, AAB-4295
Regd. Office : 22, Camac Street, Block 'C', 3rd Floor, Kolkata-700 016
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance. but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if. individually or in the
aggregate. they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs. we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. whether due to fraud or error. design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error. as fraud may involve collusion. forgery. intentional omissions. misrepresentations. or the
override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and. based on the audit
evidence obtained. whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists. we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or. if such disclosures are
inadequate. to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

»  Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the financial statements. including the disclosures. and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding. among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence. and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence. and where applicable. related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.  Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order. 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central Government of India
in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act., we give in the “Annexure 17 a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act. we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit:

(b) In our opinion. proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from
our examination of those books:

(c) The Balance Sheet. the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income. the
Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books
of account:

(d) In our opinion. the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133
of the Act. read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2013. as amended:

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31. 2023 taken on record by the
Board of Directors. none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act:

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements and the
operating effectiveness of such controls. refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 27 to this report:
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(g) The Company has not paid any managerial remuneration during the year and hence. provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company for the year ended March 31. 2023:

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014. as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i

il

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements
— Refer Note 28(c) to the financial statements:

The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards. for material
foreseeable losses, if any. on long-term contracts including derivative contracts — Refer Note 17 to the financial
statements:

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company:

a) The management has represented that to the best of its knowledge and belief. as disclosed in the note 36(v)
to the financial statements. no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities.
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™). with the understanding. whether recorded in writing or otherwise.
that the Intermediaries shall. whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief. as disclosed in the note 36(vi)
to the financial statements. no funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities.
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”). with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise. that the company shall. whether. directly or indirectly. lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in anv manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee. security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries: and

¢) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances.
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and
{b) contain anv material misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules. 2014 is applicable for the Company only we.f.
April 1. 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

UDIN: 23213157BGYAKZ9314

Place: Bengaluru

ip Number: 213157

Date: May 11, 2023
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Annexure ‘1’ referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of our
report of even date

Re: Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited (“the Company™)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of account and
records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

(i) (a}A)

(a)}B)
(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(i1) (a)

(b)

(iii) (a)

(b)

(d)

(e)

(®

(iv)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars. including quantitative details and situation
of Property. Plant and Equipment and Investment Property.

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

Property. Plant and Equipment and Investment Property have been physically verified by the management during
the year and no material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties disclosed in note 3.2 to the financial statements included in
investment property and capital work-in-progress are held in the name of the Company. Immovable properties
of land and buildings whose title deeds have been pledged as security for term loans and guarantees. are held in
the name of the Company based on confirmations received by us from lenders.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or Intangible Assets during the vear ended
March 31. 2023.

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under
the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act. 1988 and rules made thereunder as disclosed in the note
36(i) to the financial statements.

Having regard to the nature of inventory comprising work in progress of projects under development. the
management has conducted phvsical verification of inventory by way of verification of title deeds. site visits and
certification of extent of work completion. at reasonable intervals during the vear. In our opinion the coverage
and the procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate. Discrepancies of 10% or more in
aggregate for each class of inventory were not noticed on such physical verification.

The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks
or financial institutions during any point of time of the vear on the basis of security of current assets. Accordingly.
the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the year. the Company has not provided loans. advances in the nature of loans. stood guarantee or
provided security to companies. firms. limited liability partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly. the
requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the vear, the Company has not made investments. provided guarantees, provided security and granted
loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies. firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties.
Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies. firms. limited liability
partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to companies. firms. limited liability
partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(d) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships
or any other parties. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans. either repavable on demand or without
specifving any terms or period of repayment to companies. firms. limited liability partnerships or any other
parties. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of sections 185 and 186
of the Companies Act. 2013 are applicable and accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.
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v)

(vi)

(vii) (a)
(b)

(viii)

(ix) (a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)

(x) (a)

(b)

(xi) (a)
(b)
(c)

(xii)

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are deemed to
be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder. to the
extent applicable. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made by the
Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Companies Act. 2013.
related to the construction activities. and are of the opinion that prima facie. the specified accounts and records
have been made and maintained. We have not. however. made a detailed examination of the same.

Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax. income-tax. duty of custom. cess and other statutory
dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though there have been slight delays
in a few cases. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures
performed by us. no undisputed amounts pavable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding. at the year
end. for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

The provisions relating to provident fund and employee’s state insurance are not applicable to the Company.

There are no dues of goods and services tax. income tax. sales-tax. service tax. customs duty. excise duty. value
added tax. cess. goods and service tax and other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute.

The provisions relating to provident fund and employee’s state insurance are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction. previously unrecorded in the books of account.
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year as disclosed in note 36 (vii) of
the financial statements. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or interest thereon due to any lender.

The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any
government authority.

Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

The Company did not raise any funds on short term basis during the vear. Hence. the requirement to report on
clause (ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary. associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement to report
on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement to report
on Clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money during the vear by way of initial public offer / further public offer
(including debt instruments) and hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or partially or
optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence. the requirement to report on clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the vear.
During the year. no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act. 2013 has been filed by
secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)

Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management. there are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during
the vear.

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act. 2013. Therefore. the
requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a). (b) & (c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

bl
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(xii)

(xiv) ()

(b)

(xv)

(xvi) (a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(xvii)

(xviil)

(xix)

(xx) (a)

(xx) (b)

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act. 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report. for the period under audit have
been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its
directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The provisions of section 43-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act. 1934 (2 of 1934) are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities. Accordingly. the
requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of India.
Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group. hence. the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(d)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company

The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to Rs. 973 lakhs in the current year and amounting to Rs.5.135
lakhs in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the vear and accordingly requirement to report on
Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 26 to the financial statements, ageing and expected dates of
realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities. other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of
the evidence supporting the assumptions. nothing has come to our attention. which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We. however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate Social Responsibility is not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate Social Responsibility is not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

MembersHip Number: 213157

UDIN: 23213157BGYAKZ9314

Chartered Accountants

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 11.2023
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Annexure ‘2’ referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of our
report of even date

Re: Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited (*the Company”)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements of Perungudi Real Estates Private
Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31. 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for
the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance note™). These responsibilities include the design. implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business. including adherence to the Company’s policies. the safeguarding of its assets. the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors. the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information. as required under the Companies Act. 2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. both issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
with reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls with
reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference
to these financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists. and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement. including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that. in reasonable detail.
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company: (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only inaccordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company: and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorised acquisition. use. or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls. material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also. projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions. or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.




S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

Opinion

In our opinion. the Company has. in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements and such internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements were operating effectively as at
March 31. 2023. based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registgation Number: 101049W/E300004

Membership Number: 213157

UDIN: 23213157BGYAKZ9314

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 11,2023



Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work in progress
Investment property
Intangible assets
Financial assets

Other non-current financial assets
Other non-current assets
Deferred tax assets (net)
Assets for current tax (net)
Sub total

Current assets
Inventories
Financial assets
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Other current financial assets
Other current assets
Sub total

Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Equity share capital
Other equity

Total equity

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Other non-current financial liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Other non-current liabilities
Sub total

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smatl enterprises
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises
Other current financial liabilities
Other current liabilities
Short-term Provisions
Liabilities for current tax (net)
Sub total

Total equity and liahilities
Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 101049W/E300004

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 11, 2023

LY ™
Notes March 31. 2023 March 31. 2022
3.1 15 1
33 3,663 2.656
32 139,777 149,177
4 800 900
5 3,963 9,637
6 6 43
14 1,774 -
14 2.345 753
152,343 163,167
7 52,249 42,009
8 1,248 3,957
9.1 5,861 3,825
9.2 14,771 5,343
5 3,223 1,248
] 3.197 1.442
80,549 57,824
232.802 220,991
10 12,457 12,457
11 (16.960) (17.746)
(4,503) (5,289)
12 139,734 142,674
13 998 2,560
14 - 4
16 151 281
140,883 145,519
12 3.741 2,959
15
108 1
1,892 1,791
13 41,072 48,461
16 48,246 26,592
17 1,453 930
14 - 27
6,512 80,761
2.%892 220,991
21

For and on behalf of the board of directors of]
Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited

N
Lo @

Mohan Parvatikar
Director
DIN: 00235941

gV

3

Coﬂ\#a‘r:fSecn‘e(ry and

Chief Financial Officer
Membership no.: A38729
Place: Bengaluru

Date: May 11, 2023

Arindam Mukherjee

Director

DIN: 08776424

Thirumanan R

Manager
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Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the vear ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)
Notes March 31. 2023 March 31. 2022

Income
Revenue from operations 18 11.899 10,528
Other income 19 1.193 332
Total income (i) 13.092 10.860
Expenses
Sub-contractor cost 6,697 5,720
Cost of project materials consumed 20 350 200
{Increase)/ decrease in inventories of work-in-progress 21 (10,177) (7,976)
Employee benefits expense 22 16 13
Finance costs 23 14414 14,477
Depreciation and amortization expense 24 8.807 10,045
Other expenses 25 2719 3,546
Total expenses (i) 22,826 26.025
{Loss) before tax (iii) = (i) - (ii) (9,734) (15.165)
Tax expense 14
Current tax 46 15
Deferred tax (4.338) -
Total tax expense (iv) (4.292) 15
(Loss) for the year (v) = (iii) - (iv) (5.442) (15,180)
Other comprehensive income ('OCI') (vi) w =
Total comprehensive (loss) for the year o :
[comprising (Loss) and OCI for the year]| (vi) = () + (i) (5:442) (15,180)
Earning/(Loss) per share 27
[nominal value of share Rs. 10 (March 31, 2022: Rs.10)]
Basic (Rs.)

Class A equity shares - -

Class B equity shares (4.45) (12.43)

Class C equity shares (4.29) (11.96)
Diluted (Rs.)

Class A equity shares - B

Class B equity shares (4.45) (12.43)

Class C equity shares (4.29) (11.96)
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registratién number: 101049W/E300004

For and on behalf of the board of directors o
Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited

Mo B

Mohan Parvatikar

Director
DIN: 00235941

g

gaﬁw A
¥ Thirumanan R
Coffipany Secretary and Manager

Chief Financial Officer
Membership no.: A38729

el
o

Arindam Mukherjee
Director
DIN: 08776424

per Sudh ain
Partner

Membership no.: 213157

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 11,2023

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 11, 2023




Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital (refer note 10)

Class A Equity shares Class B Equity shares Class C Equity shares Total
5 oy No. of Rs. No. of Rs. No. of Rs. No. of Rs.
ll_lss';:i:u:ci:ﬁd and fully paid shares in lakhs shares in lakhs shares  inlakhs shares  in lakhs
" e (in lakhs) (in lakhs) (in lakhs) (in lakhs)
Equity shares of Rs.10 each:
As at April 01, 2021 1 10 623 6,230 622 6,217 1,246 12,457
Changes during the year - & i = " i . "
As at March 31, 2022 1 10 623 6.230 622 6,217 1,246 12,457
Changes during the year - = 5 « w & = =
As at March 31, 2023 1 10 623 6.230 622 6,217 1,246 12,457
B. Other equity (refer note 11)
Ty Other Reserves and surplus
component of Satabutien
Compound § B Debenture General Retained  Total
Financial donkisaie Redemption Reserve earnings
holders P 2
Instruments Reserve
As at April 01, 2021 10 - 15 4 (2,595) (2,566)
(Loss) for the year - - - - (15,180) (15,180)
As at March 31, 2022 10 2 15 4 (17,775) (17,746)
(Loss) for the year ) - S - (5442)  (5442)
Non-cash adjustments upon waiver of Interest payable on - 6,583 - - - 6,583
debentures
Impact of adoption of amendments to Ind AS 37 = - = # (355) (355)
As at March 31, 2023 10 6,583 15 4 (23.572)  (16.960)
Summary of significant accounting policies 21
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the board of directo
Chartered Accountants Perungudi Real Estates Private Limi
ICAI Firm registratign number: 101049W/E300004 o’.'y
2 g
- S s
Mohan Parvatikar Arindam Mukherjee
Director Director
DIN: 00235941 DIN: 08776424
. R
e A
Ras v Thirumanan R
Company Secretary and Manager

Chief Financial Officer
Membership no.: A38729

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 11, 2023 Date: May 11, 2023



Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Cash flows from operating activities
(Loss) before tax
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortization expense
Finance Costs
Liabilities no longer required written back
Provision for onerous contract
Interest income
Operating profit before working capital changes
Working capital adjustments:
Increase in trade pavables
Increase in other liabilities
Increase / (Decrease) in other financial liabilities
(Increase) in inventories
(Increase) in trade receivables
(Increase) in other financial assets
(Increase) in other assets
Cash generated from operations
Direct taxes paid, net
Net cash flows from operating activities (A)

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of investment property

(including capital work in progress and capital advances)
Investment in bank deposits

Redemption of bank deposits

Interest received

Net cash flows used in investing activities (B)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from term loan from banks
Repayment of term loan from banks

Proceeds from issue of debentures

Interest paid

Net cash flows from financing activities (C)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the vear

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Balance with banks

- on current accounts

- in deposit accounts with original maturity of less than 3 months
Total cash and cash equivalents as reported in Balance Sheet

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Account:

ICAI Firm registratyn number: 101049W/E300004

Membership no.: 213157

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 11, 2023

9.1

9.1

2.1

March 31, 2023 March 31. 2022
(9,734) (15,165)
8,807 10,045
14,414 14,477
(139) s
23 150
(997) (321)
12374 9,186
208 110
21,523 18,619
965 (235)
(10,240) (7.978)
2,709 (2.905)
773 (4.079)
(1.718) (432)
26,594 12,286
(1,665) (493)
24,929 11,793
(5,980) (9,153)
(14,833) (14,008)
8,513 4336
815 132
(11,485) (18,693)
3.53 26,524
(3,264) (18,734)
= 5,000
(11.677) (5.911)
(11,408) 6,879
2,036 (21)
3,825 3.846
5,861 3,825
1,611 2,493
4,250 1,332
5,861 3,825

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited

\no~

Mohan Parvatikar
Director
DIN: 00235941

s B

Cémpany Secretary and
Chief Financial Officer
Membership no.: A38729

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 11, 2023

Arindam Mukherjee
Director
DIN: 08776424

s

Thirumanan R
Manager




Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

1. Corporate information

Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited ("PREPL" or "the Company") (bearing CIN number U70200TN2015PTC102278) was incorporated on
September 21, 2015. The Company is engaged in the business of real estate development and leasing.

On March 03, 2016, the Company had executed Securities Subscription Agreement ("SSA") and Share Holders Agreement ("SHA") (collectively
referred to as "Investment Agreements") with Reco Caspia Pte Limited ("RCPL") and Brigade Enterprises Limited ("BEL") (collectively referred to
as "Investors") pursuant to which the Investors have invested in the Company for execution of real estate projects.

The financial statements were authorized for 1ssue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of directors of the Company on May 11, 2023,
2: Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules. 2015 (as amended) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule I1I to the Companies Act. 2013 (Ind AS compliant
Schedule I11). as applicable to the financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

2.1  Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses. assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period.
Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities. The effect of change in an
accounting estimate is recognized prospectively.

(b) Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cvcle

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. The company has
evaluated and considered its operating cycle as below and accordingly has reclassified its assets and liabilities into current and non-current:
-Residential projects for real estate development -3-5 years
-Leasing business -1 year

Assets and liabilities, other than those discussed above, are classified as current to the extent they are expected to be realized/ are contractually
repayable within 12 months from the Balance sheet date and as non-current, in other cases.

Deferred tax assets/liabilities are classified as non-current assets/liabilities.
(c) Property. plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises
purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the
intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated separately.
This applies mainly to components for machinery. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in
the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognized in profit or loss as incurred.




Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Allamounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property. plant and equipment is added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits from its
previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing property. plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and
maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are
incurred.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition of property. plant and equipment which take substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use are also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as capital advances under
other non-current assets.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the Property, plant and equipment is de-recognized.

Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capitalized, Indirect expenditure incurred during construction period is capitalized to the
extent to which the expenditure is indirectly related to construction or is incidental thereto. Other indirect expenditure (including borrowing costs)
incurred during the construction period which is neither related to the construction activity nor is incidental thereto is charged to the statement of
profit and loss.

Costs of assets not ready for use at the balance sheet date are disclosed under capital work- in- progress.
(d) Investment property

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

The cost includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When
significant parts of the investment property are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific
useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Though the Company measures investment property using cost-based measurement. the fair value of investment property is disclosed in the notes.
Fair values are determined based on an annual evaluation performed by an accredited extemal independent valuer.

Investment properties are de-recognized when the entity transfers control of the same o the buyer. Further the entity also derecognises investment
properties when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in profit or loss in the period of de-recognition.

Costs of assets not ready for use at the balance sheet date are disclosed under Capital work- in- progress.

Transfers are made to (or from) investment properties only when there is a change in use. Transfers between investment property, owner-occupied
property and inventories do not change the carrying amount of the property transferred and they do not change the cost of that property for
measurement or disclosure purposes.

(e) Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on written down value basis using the following useful lives estimated by the management, which are equal to those
prescribed under Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013:

Category of Asset Useful lives (in
years)

Buildings 60

Plant and machinery 15
Electrical Installation and equipment 10
Furniture, fixtures and fit outs 10
Computer hardware

- Computer equipment 3

- Servers and network equipment 6
Office equipment 5

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment and investment property are reviewed at each financial
vear end and adjusted prospectively., if appropriate.

(H Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Intangible asset comprising of license is amortized on a straight-line basis over a period of ten years, which is estimated by the management to be the
useful life of the asset,
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The residual values, useful lives and methods of amortization of intangible assets are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively,
if appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when asset is derecognized.

(g) Impairment

A. Financial assets

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether  financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and measures the required
-expected credit losses through a loss allowance, The Company recognizes lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and / or all trade receivables
that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets. expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month
expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition.

B. Non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists. or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required. the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrving amount of an
asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount,

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are
taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified. an appropriate valuation model is used.

Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profitand loss. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the
asset over its remaining useful life.

(h) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized/inventorised as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to
statement of profit and loss.

(i) Inventories

Direct expenditure relating to real estate activity is inventorised. Other expenditure (including borrowing costs) during construction period is
inventorised 1o the extent the expenditure is directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Other
expenditure (including borrowing costs) incurred during the construction period which is not directly attributable for bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use is charged to the statement of profit and loss. Direct and other expenditure is determined based on specific identification
1o the real estate activity.

Work-in-progress represents cost incurred in respect of unsold area ( including land) of the real estate development projects or cost incurred on
projects where the revenue is yet to be recognized.

Raw materials- Project materials are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value.

Cost is determined based on FIFO Basis. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(i) Land

Advances paid by the Company to the seller/ intermediary toward outright purchase of land is recognized as land advance under loans and advances
during the course of obtaining elear and marketable title. free from all encumbrances and transfer of legal title to the Company. whereupon it is
transferred to land stock under inventories/ capital work in progress.

(k) Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is measured based on the transaction
price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts and other credits. if any. as specified in the contract with the customer. The Company
presents revenue from contracts with customers net of indirect taxes in its statement of profit and loss.

The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a portion of the
transaction price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price. the Company considers the effects of variable consideration, the
existence of significant financing components, noncash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer, if any,

Revenue from real estate development of residential or commercial unit is recognised at the point in time, when the control of the asset is transferred
to the customer.
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Revenue consists of sale of undivided share of land and constructed area to the customer. which have been identified by the Company as a single
performance obligation. as they are highly interrelated/ interdependent,

The performance obligation in relation to real estate development is satisfied upon completion of project work and transfer of control of the asset to
the customer.

For contracts involving sale of real estate unit. the Company receives the consideration in accordance with the terms of the contract in proportion of
the percentage of completion of such real estate project and represents payments made by customers to secure performance obligation of the
Company under the contract enforceable by customers. Such consideration is received and utilised for specific real estate projects in accordance with
the requirements of the Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act. 2016. Consequently, the Company has concluded that such contracts with
customers do not involve any financing element since the same arises for reasons explained above. which is other than for provision of finance
to/from the customer.

Contract balances

Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by transferring
goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the eamned
consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before
payment of the consideration is due).

Contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract
liability is recognised when the payment is made. or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Company performs under the contract.

Cost to obtain a contract

The Company recognises as an asset the incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer if the Company expects to recover those costs. The
Company incurs costs such as sales commission when it enters into a new contract, which are directly related to winning the contract. The asset
recognised is amortised on a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which the asset relates.

Income from leasing

Rental income receivable under operating leases (excluding variable rental income) is recognized in the income statement on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease including lease income on fair value of refundable security deposits, Rental income under operating leases having variable
rental income is recognized as per the terms of the contract,

Interest income
Interest income, including income arising from other financial instruments. is recognised using the effective interest rate method. Interest on delaved
payment by customers are accounted when reasonable certainty of collection is established.

() Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
Company operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions and balances

1) Initial recognition - Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange
rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

1) Conversion - Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary items,
which are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
Non-monetary items, which are measured at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange
rate at the date when such value was determined.

iii) Exchange differences - The Company accounts for exchange differences arising on translation/ settlement of foreign currency monetary items as
income or as expense in the period in which they arise.

(m) Retirement and other employee benefits

The provisions of the Employees’ Provident Funds & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and Employees” State Insurance Act, 1948, Payment of
Gratuity Act, 1972, etc. are not applicable to the Company as the number of employees are less than the minimum required employees under the said
acts.

(n) Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the year. Current and deferred tax
are recognized in the statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

1. Current income tax
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Current income tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities
based on the taxable income for that period. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date.

ii.  Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognized on temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes. except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences. carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses. to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilized,

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in
equity.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realized or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

(0) Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks
specific to the hability, When discounting is used. the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare
cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent
liability but discloses it in the financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

If the company has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract is established. the Company recognises any impairment loss
that has occurred on assets dedicated to the contract.

Refer Note 17 for adoption of amendments to Ind AS 37 w.r.t provision for onerous contracts.
(p) Cash dividend to equity holders of the Company

The Company recognizes a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders of the Company when the distribution is authorized and the
distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. Final dividends on shares are recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the
shareholders and interim dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the Company's Board of Directors.

(q) Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash that are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase. to be cash equivalents. Cash and
cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash on hand and bank balances which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

() Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are
entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a
corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

(s) Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The

arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys
a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.
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Where the Company is lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset is classified as operating
leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Company to the lessee. Amounts
due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

(1) Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
1. Initial recognition and measurement of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets
and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value
measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability.

i Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is to hold these
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

1ii. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

v, Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are immediately recognized in statement of profit and loss.

v, Debt instruments at amortized cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal
amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The
EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the profit or loss. This
category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

vi. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpese of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as
hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the profit or loss.

vii. Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest (‘EIR’) method.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using EIR method. For trade and other payables maturing within
one vear from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments,

viil, De-recognition of financial instruments
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it transfers the financial

asset and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition under Ind AS 109. A financial liability (ora part of a financial liability) is derecognized when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.
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. Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made
for financial instruments.

% Fair value of financial instruments

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments. the Company uses following hierarchy and assumptions that are based on market conditions
and risks existing at each reporting date.

Fair value hierarchy: All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

P Level 1- Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

P Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
> Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

(u) Segment reporting

i. Identification of segments - The Company’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of products and
services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different products and serves different markets. The analysis of
geographical segments is based on the areas in which major operating divisions of the Company operate.

ii. Inter-segment transfers - The Company generally accounts for intersegment sales and transfers at appropriate margins,

iii. Unallocated items - Unallocated items include general corporate asset. liability, income and expense items which are not allocated to any business
segment,

iv. Segment accounting policies - The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing
and presenting the financial statements of the Company as a whole.

22 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management 1o make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures. and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in
future periods.

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. management makes judgment, estimates and assumptions which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements. The key judgment, estimates and assumptions conceming the future and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date. which have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its judgments and assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments,
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they oceur. Also refer note 2.3 below.

Significant accounting judgements. estimates and assumptions used by management are as below:

Revenue from contracts with customers
The Company applied the following judgements that significantly affect the determination of the amount and timing of revenue from contracts with
customers:

aj Identification of performance obligation

Revenue consists of sale of undivided share of land and constructed area to the customer, which have been identified by

the Company as a single performance obligation, as they are highly interrelated/ interdependent. In assessing whether performance obligations
relating to sale of undivided share of land and constructed area are highly interrelated interdependent, the Company considers factors such as:

- whether the customer could benefit from the undivided share of land or the constructed area on its own or together with other resources readily
available to the customer,

- whether the entity will be able to fulfil its promise under the contract to transfer the undivided share of land without transfer of constructed area or
transfer the constructed area without transfer of undivided share of land.

b) Timing of satisfaction of performance obligation

Revenue from sale of real estate units is recognised when (or as) control of such units is transferred to the customer. The entity assesses timing of

transfer of control of such units to the customers as transferred over time if one of the following criteria are met:

- The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the entity's performance as the entity performs.

- The entity's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced.

- The entity's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the entity and the entity has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.
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If control is not transferred over time as above. the entity considers the same as transferred at a point in time.

For contracts where control is transferred at a point in time, the Company considers the following indicators of the
transfer of control of the asset to the customer:

- When the entity obtains a present right to payment for the asset.

- When the entity transfers legal title of the asset to the customer.

- When the entity transfers physical possession of the asset to the customer.

- When the entity transfers significant risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to the customer.

- When the customer has accepted the asset.

Estimation of net realizable value for inventory

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV). NRV for completed inventory is assessed by reference to market conditions
and prices existing at the reporting date and is determined by the Company, based on comparable transactions identified by the Company for
properties in the same geographical market serving the same real estate segment.

NRV in respect of inventory under construction is assessed with reference to market prices at the reporting date for similar completed property, less
estimated costs to complete construction and an estimate of the time value of money to the date of completion,

Measurement of financial instruments at amortized cost

Financial instruments are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest (‘EIR’) method. The computation of amortized cost is
sensitive to the inputs to EIR including effective rate of interest, contractual cash flows and the expected life of the financial instrument. Changes in
assumptions about these inputs could affect the reported value of financial instruments.

Classification of property as investment property or inventory

Investment property comprises land and buildings, principally commercial properties, that are not occupied substantially for use by, or in the
operations of, the Company, nor for sale in the ordinary course of business, but are held primarily to eam rental income and capital appreciation.
These buildings are substantially rented to tenants and not intended to be sold in the ordinary course of business.

Inventory comprises property that is held for sale in the ordinary course of business. Principally, this is residential and commercial property that the
Company develops and intends to sell before or during the course of construction or upon completion of construction.

Operating lease commitments — Company as lessor

The Company has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio. The Company has determined, based on an
evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major part of the economic life of the
commercial property and the fair value of the asset, that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties and accounts
for the contracts as operating leases.

Initial direct cost recognised as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as the lease income.

2.3 During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company has incurred loss of Rs. 5442 lakhs (March 31, 2022: Rs. 15,180 lakhs) and has
accumulated losses of Rs. 23,572 lakhs as at March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022: Rs. 17,775 lakhs). During the current year, the Company has received
financial support from its investors by way of waiver of interest payable on the outstanding debentures for a period of one year. Further, during the
previous year, the Company had also received financial support from its investors by way of subscription of debentures. The Company is in the initial
phase of its leasing and real estate development operations and its ability to continue as a going concern is based on establishing profitable
operations. availing unutilised bank borrowing limits and obtaining continuing financial support from its investors.
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3.1 Property, plant and equipment

Office
" Total
Equipment
Cost
At April 1, 2021 2 2
Additions = 4
At March 31, 2022 2 Zz
Additions 16 16
At March 31, 2023 18 18
Depreciation
At April 1, 2021 1 1
Charge for the year® a -
At March 31, 2022 1 1
Charge for the year 2 2
At March 31, 2023 3 3
Net book value
At March 31, 2022 1 1
At March 31, 2023 15 15

Note:
1. Refer note 12 for details of Property, plant and equipment pledged as security for borrowings.

3.2 Investment Property

Freehold  Building Other assets forming part of building Total
Land Electrical  Furniture  Plant&  Computer  Office
installation & & Fixtures Machinery hardware equipment
equipment
Cost
At April 1, 2021 39,197 89,649 9,866 1,063 7,718 117 1,070 148,680
Additions - 4.950 1,698 826 931 13 244 8.662
At March 31,2022 39,197 94,599 11,564 1,889 8,649 130 1,314 157,342
Additions - - - - - - - -
At March 31, 2023 39.197 94.599 11.564 1.889 8,649 130 1,314 157.342
Depreciation
At April 1, 2021 - 12 7 1 L} - 1 25
Charge for the year - 4,604 2,989 328 1,438 76 510 9,945
At March 31, 2022 - 4,616 2,996 329 1,442 76 511 9,970
Charge for the year 4,382 2218 404 1,305 33 363 8.705
At March 31, 2023 - 8.998 5.214 733 2,747 109 874 18.675
Net book value (A)
At March 31, 2022 39,197 89,983 8.568 1,560 7,207 54 803 147.372
At March 31, 2023 39,197 85,601 6,350 1,156 5.902 21 440 138.667

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease (B)**
At March 31, 2022 1,805
At March 31, 2023 1,110

Investment property value (A+B)
At March 31, 2022 149,177
At March 31, 2023 139,777

** Amortisation of initial direct costs over the lease term is included under Brokerage and commission Expenses in Note 25 - Other Expenses.
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3.2 Investment Property (continued)

Information regarding income and expenditure of investment property March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Rental income derived from investment properties (including maintenance services) 11,899 10,528

Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) arising from investment property generating (1,378) (1.803)
rental income

Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) that did not generate rental income (481) (322)
Profit arising from investment properties before depreciation and indirect expenses 10,040 8,403

Less: Depreciation & amortisation expense (8,705) (9.945)
Profit/(Loss) arising from investment properties before indirect expenses 1,335 (1,542)

The Company's investment property consist of one commercial property in Chennai, India. The management has determined that the investment property
consist of office property based on the nature, characteristics and risks of the property.

Refer note 12 for details of Investment property pledged as security for borrowings.
The Company has no restrictions on the realisability of its investment properties and no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop

investment properties or for repairs, mai 1ce and enh excepts as disclosed in note 12 and 28(b).
Fair value of investment property: March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Office property 210,883 209,081

The valuations are performed by an independent external valuer, who specialises in valuating these types of investment properties and such valuer is not a
registered valuer as defined under rule 2 of Companies (Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017,

The fair value of investment properties is primarily based on discounted cashflow method ('DCM') and classified as level 3 fair value in the fair value
hierarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs. There has been no change in valuation techniques used since prior year.

Description of valuation techniques used and key inputs to valuation on investment properties

Investment property Valuation Significant observable inputs Range
technique (weighted average)
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Office property DCF -Estimated rental value per sq. ft. per month Rs. 80 -Rs. 87 Rs, 80 -Rs. 82
method -Rent growth p.a. 5% 5%
-Discount rate 9% 9%
-Vacancy rate 5% 5%

Under the DCF method, fair value is estimated using assumptions regarding the benefits and liabilities of ownership over the asset’s life including an exit
or terminal value. This method involves the projection of a series of cash flows on a real estate property interest. To this projected cash flow series, a
market-derived discount rate is applied to establish the present value of the income stream associated with the asset.

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of inflows and outflows are determined by events such as rent reviews, lease renewal and related re-
letting, redevelopment, or refurbishment. The appropriate duration is typically driven by market behaviour that is a characteristic of the class of real estate
property. Periodic cash flow is typically estimated as gross income, non-recoverable expenses, collection losses, lease incentives, maintenance cost and
other operating and management expenses. The series of periodic net operating income, along with an estimate of the terminal value anticipated at the
end of the projection period, is then discounted.

Significant increases/ (decreases) in estimated rental value and rent growth per annum in isolation would result in a significantly higher/ (lower) fair value
of the properties. Significant increases/ (decreases) in discount rate (and exit yield) in isolation would result in a significantly lower (higher) fair value.
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3.3 Capital work-in-progress ('"CWIP')

At April 01, 2021
- Additions (subsequent expenditure) during the year
- Capitalised during the year

At March 31, 2022
- Additions (subsequent expenditure) during the vear
- Capitalised during the vear

At March 31,2023

Refer note 12 for details of Investment property under contruction pledged as security for borrowings.

Fair Value Disclosure

Investment
property under Total

construction

1,533 1,533

9,785 9,785

(8,662) (8.662)

2,656 2,656

1,007 1,007

3.663 3.663

The Company has determined that the fair value of the investment property under consideration is not reliably measurable and expects the fair
value of the property to be reliably measurable when construction is complete. Accordingly, the Company will measure and disclose the fair value
of the investment property when the construction is completed and is fair value becomes reliably measurable.

Capitalised borrowing costs

The amount of borrowing costs capitalised during the year ended March 31, 2023 is Rs. 330 lakhs (March 31, 2022 - Rs. 203 lakhs). The rate
used to determine the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation was 7-12%, which is the effective interest rate of the underlying

borrowing.

CWIP Ageing Schedule

Amount in CWIP for a period of

<1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
March 31, 2023
Projects in progress 1,007 1,123 1,031 502 3,663
Projects temporarily suspended - = - - =
Total 1,007 1,123 1,031 502 3,663
March 31, 2022
Projects in progress 1,123 1,031 500 2 2,656
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 1,123 1.031 500 Z 2,656
4 Intangible Assets
License Total
Cost
At April 1,2021 1,000 1,000
Additions - -
At March 31, 2022 1,000 1,000
Additions - -
At March 31, 2023 1.000 1.000
Amortization
At April 1, 2021 - -
Charge for the year 100 100
At March 31, 2022 100 100
Charge for the year 100 100
At March 31, 2023 200 200
Net book value
At March 31,2022 900 900
At March 31, 2023 800 800
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5  Other financial assets
(unsecured, considered good)

Non-Current Current
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest accrued and not due on deposits 219 192 209 54
Margin money deposits with banks* 3452 6,560 - .
Un-billed lease income 292 2,885 3,014 1,194
3,963 9,637 3.223 1,248

*Margin money deposits have been made towards borrowings, letter of credit and bank guarantee facilities availed by the Company from banks. Refer note
12 for details of deposits pledged as security for borrowings.

6 Other assets
(unsecured, considered good) Non - Current Current
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Supplier advances - - 241 140
Prepaid expenses - - 2,956 1,302

Balances with statutory / government authorities 6 43 - -
43 3,197 1,442
7 Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realisable value) March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Project materials (refer note 20) 65 2
‘Work-in-progress (refer note 18.4 and 21) 52,184 42,007
52,249 42,009

Notes

1. During the year ended March 31, 2023, Rs. 336 lakhs (March 31, 2022: Rs.595 lakhs) was recognised as a reversal of loss towards inventories carried
at net realisable value.
2. Refer note 12 for details of inventories pledged as security for borrowings.

8  Trade receivables (unsecured)

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Trade receivables - considered good 1,248 3,957
Trade receivables - credit impaired = =
1,248 3,957

Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Trade receivables - credit impaired - -
1,248 3,957

Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule:
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

<6 Months 6 Months 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than Total
to 1 Year 3 Years

March 31, 2023

Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good 944 266 38 - 1,248
Undisputed Trade receivable - credit impaired - - - - - -
Total 944 266 38 - - 1,248
March 31, 2022

Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good 1,554 1,788 278 337 - 3,957
Undisputed Trade receivable - credit impaired - - - - - -
Total 1,554 1,788 278 337 - 3,957
Notes

1. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of upto 30 days.
2. Refer note 12 for details of trade receivables pledged as security for borrowings.
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Cash and cash equivalents
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balances with banks;
- in current accounts® 1,611 2,493
- in deposit accounts with original maturity of less than 3 months 4250 1,332
5.861 3.825
* Includes Rs, 876 lakhs (March 31, 2022: Rs. 1,622 lakhs) held in bank account relating to Company’s ongoing real estate project registered under Real
Estate Regulation and Development Act, 2016 and are to be utilised for project specific purposes.
Note:
As at March 31, 2023, the Company had available Rs.47,665 lakhs (March 31, 2022: Rs. 75,830 lakhs) of undrawn committed borrowing facilities.
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:
) Non-current | Current portion “::::;‘2:[ d
Particulars portion of Total
of borrowings borrowings il
borrowings
Balance as at April 1, 2021 115,606 17,237 30,829 163,672
Finance cost inventorised’ charged off - - 14477 14,477
Finance cost capitalised - - 203 203
Cash inflows
Proceeds from non-current borrowings 31,524 - - 31,524
Cash outflows
Repayment of non-current borrowings (18.734) - - (18,734)
Interest paid - - (5.911) (5,911)
Others* 14,278 (14,278) - -
Net debt as at March 31, 2022 142,674 2,959 39,598 185,231
Finance cost inventorised/ charged off - - 14414 14,414
Finance cost capitalised - - 330 330
Cash inflows
Proceeds from non-current borrowings 3,533 - - 3,533
Cash outflows
Repayment of non-current borrowings (3,264) - - (3.264)
Interest paid - - (11,677) (11,677)
Non-cash adjustments upon waiver of Interest payable on debentures (2,427) (6,863) (9,290)
Others* (782) 782 - -
Net debt as at March 31, 2023 139,734 3,741 35,802 179,277
* Others indicates the effect of movement in reclassification of non-current portion of borrowings to current basis the balance repayment period.
Bank Balances other than Cash and cash equivalents
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balances with banks:
- Deposits with maturity of more than 3 months but not more than 12 months 14,771 5,343
- Margin money deposits 3,452 6,560
18,223 11,903
Less: Margin money deposits with banks with banks disclosed under non-current financial assets (refer note 5) (3,452) (6,560)
14,771 5343
Break up of financial assets carried at amortised cost
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Trade receivables (note 8) , 1,248 3,957
Cash and cash equivalents (note 9.1) 5.861 3.825
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents (note 9.2) 14,771 5,343
Other financial assets (note 5) 7,186 10,885
Total financial assets carried at amortised cost 29,066 24,010
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10 Share capital

Authorised share capital March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
. (in lakhs i . (in lakhs Rs. in lakhs

Class A Equity shares of Rs.10 each:

Balance at the beginning of the vear 1 10 1 10
Changes during the year - - -
Balance at the end of the vear 1 10 1 10

Class B Equity shares of Rs.10 each:

Balance at the beginning of the year 624 6,240 624 6,240
Changes during the vear - - - -
Balance at the end of the year 624 6,240 624 6,240

Class C Equity shares of Rs.10 each:

Balance at the beginning of the year 622 6,220 622 6,220
Changes during the year - - - -
Balance at the end of the vear 622 6,220 622 6,220

Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares ("CCPS") of Rs. 10 each

Balance at the beginning of the year o 2 * 2
Changes during the year = F =
Balance at the end of the year [ 2 * 2
* Represents 23,100 nos. of CCPS (March 31, 2022: 23,100 nos. of CCPS)
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Nos. (in lakhs) Rs. in lakhs  Nos. (in lakhs) Rs. in lakhs
Class A Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each
Balance at the beginning of the year 1 10 1 10
Changes during the year - - - -
Balance at the end of the year 1 10 1 10
Class B Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each
Balance at the beginning of the year 623 6,230 623 6,230
Changes during the year & B T 2
Balance at the end of the year 623 6,230 623 6,230
Class C Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each
Balance at the beginning of the year 622 6,217 622 6,217
Changes during the year = E = =
Balance at the end of the year 622 6,217 622 6,217
Total share capital
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,246 12,457 1,246 12,457
Changes during the year = - - -
Balance at the end of the year 1,246 12,457 1,246 12,457

Share capital (Continued)

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares
The Company has 3 classes of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 each per share. All rights, privileges and conditions are in accordance with the
Investment Agreements.

Class A equity shares

Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. No dividends and other distribution would be made to the share holders, except in case of
liquidation of the Company. In the event of liquidation of the Company, any distributions to the shareholders shall be in the manner as set out in the
investors agreements.

Class B equity shares

The holder of equity shares do not have any voting rights. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees in accordance with the Investment
Agreements. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in ensuing Annual General Meeting. In event
of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares would be entitled to receive distributions as prescribed under the Investment Agreements. The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
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Class C equity shares

The holder of equity shares do not have any voting rights. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees in accordance with the Investment
Agreements, The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in ensuing Annual General Meeting. In event
of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares would be entitled to receive distributions as prescribed under the Investment Agreements. The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Terms of CCPS

CCPS were issued during the period ended March 31, 2016 at par carrying a cumulative dividend rate of 0.01% per annum. The holder of CCPS may at
any time prior to the expiry of 20 years from the issuance exercise the option to convert CCPS to Class C equity shares. 1 (one) CCPS would be
converted to 10 (ten) Class C equity shares. The options (including conversion) under the CCPS shall be exercised solely in accordance with the
Investors Agreements and the Articles. The holder has offered to convert the instrument on March 31, 2024. The presentation of liability and equity
portions of CCPS is explained in the summary of significant accounting policy.

(a) Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding company and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Nos. (in lakhs) Rs. in lakhs  Nos. (in lakhs) Rs. in lakhs

Brigade Enterprises Limited. the holding companv
Class A equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid i 5 -
Class B equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid 623 6,230 623 &

(=3
ud
(=T

** 51,000 nos. of Class A equity shares (March 31, 2022: 51,000 nos. of Class A equity shares)

(b) Details of shares held by promoters:

No. of shares at Changes during No. of shares % holding of total % Change during

the beginning the year at the end of shares the year
of the year the year
Nos. (in lakhs)  Nos. (in lakhs) Nos. (in lakhs) % holding % change
Class A Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid
Reco Caspia Pie Ltd * - * 49% -
Brigade Enterprises Limited o - poud 51% 3

¥ 49,000 nos. of Class A equity shares (March 31, 2022: 49,000 nos. of Class A equity shares)
## 51,000 nos. of Class A equity shares (March 31, 2022; 51,000 nos. of Class A equity shares)

Class B equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid
Brigade Enterprises Limited 623 - 623 100% -

Class C equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid
Reco Caspia Pte Ltd 622 - 622 100% -

Reco Caspia Pte Ltd hiuiad - e 100% -
#4* 23.100 nos. of CCPS (March 31, 2022: 23,100 nos. of CCPS)

(c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company:

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Class A Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid
Reco Caspia Pte Ltd * 49% = 49%
Brigade Enterprises Limited " 51% e 51%

* 49,000 nos. of Class A equity shares (March 31, 2022: 49,000 nos. of Class A equity shares)
** 51,000 nos. of Class A equity shares (March 31, 2022: 51,000 nos. of Class A equity shares)

Class B equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid
Brigade Enterprises Limited 623 100% 623 100%

Class C equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid
Reco Caspia Pte Ltd 622 100% 622 100%

Reco Caspia Pte Ltd A 100% sl 100%
**% 23,100 nos. of CCPS (March 31, 2022: 23,100 nos. of CCPS)

(d) Shares reserved for issue under options
For details of shares reserved for issue on conversion of debentures, refer note 12. Further. for details of equity shares reserved for issue on conversion of
CCPS, refer above.
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11 Other equity

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Equity component of compound financial instruments

Balance at the beginning of the year 10 10
Changes during the year - =
Balance at the end of the year (A) 10 10

Note: Equity component of compound financial instruments (i.e. CCPS) represents the residual amount after deducting from the fair value of the
instrument as a whole the amount separately determined for the liability component and tax effect thereon.

Debenture Redemption Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 15 15
Changes during the year 4 =
Balance at the end of the year (B) 15 15

Note: Debenture redemption reserve is created out of free reserves with respect to redeemable debentures.

Other contribution from shareholders

Balance at the beginning of the year = #
Changes during the vear [refer note 12(xiv)] 6,583 -
Balance at the end of the year (C) 6,583 -

Note: Other contribution from shareholders represents non cash adjustment upon waiver of interest payable on debentures held by shareholders.

General Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 4 4
Changes during the vear 5
Balance at the end of the year (D) 4 4

Note: General reserve represents amounts transferred from debenture redemption reserve on redemption of debentures. s

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss

Balance at the beginning of the vear (17.775) (2,595)
Total comprehensive income for the year (5.442) (15,180)
Impact of adoption of amendments to Ind AS 37 (refere note 17) (355) -

Balance at the end of the year (E) (23,572) (17,775)

Total other equity (A+B+C+D+E) (16,960) (17,746)
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12 Borrowings

March 31, 2023 March 31,2022

Non-current Borrowings

Debentures (Unsecured)

2,37,55,200 (March 31, 2022 - 2,37,55,200) 12% A series fully convertible debentures (FCD') of Rs.100 each 23,056 23,755
(unsecured) (refer note (i))

2,37,64.800 (March 31, 2022 - 2,37,64.800) 12% A series optionally convertible debentures ('OCD') of Rs.100 each 23,066 23,765
(unsecured) (refer note (ii))

5,00,000 (March 31, 2022 - 5,00,000) 12% A11 series FCD of Rs. 100 each (unsecured) (refer note (iii)) 485 500
5,00,000 (March 31,2022 - 5,00,000) 12% A11 series OCD of Rs. 100 each (unsecured) (refer note (iv)) 485 500
15,00,000 (March 31,2022 - 15,00,000) 12% A12 series FCD of Rs.100 each (unsecured) (refer note (v)) 1,456 1,500
15,00,000 (March 31, 2022 - 15,00,000) 12% A 12 series OCD of Rs. 100 each (unsecured) (refer note (vi)) 1,456 1.500
60,00,000 (March 31, 2022 - 60,00,000) 12% A series Non convertible debentures ('NCD'} of Rs.100 each 5,824 6,000
(unsecured) (refer note (vii))

30,00.000 (March 31, 2022 - 30,00,000) 12% B series NCD of Rs.100 each (unsecured) (refer note (viii)) 2912 3,000
1,00,00,000 {(March 31, 2022 - 1,00,00,000) 12% B (1) series NCD of Rs. 100 each (unsecured) (refer note (ix)) 9,706 10,000
70,00,000 (March 31, 2022 - 70,00,000) 12% B (11) series NCD of Rs.100 each (unsecured) (refer note (x)) 6,794 7,000
50,00,000 (March 31, 2022 - 50,00,000) 12% C series NCD of Rs. 100 each (unsecured) (refer note xi) 4,853 5,000
Liability Component of Compound Financial Instruments (Unsecured)

Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (refer note 10) 9 9

Term loan (secured)

Term loan from banks (refer note xii) 63,373 63,104
143,475 145,633
Less: current maturities of non-current borrowings - disclosed under the head "Current Borrowings"
Term loan from banks (3,741) (2,959)
Total non-current borrewings 139,734 142,674

Current Borrowings

Term loan from banks & financial institutions 3,741 2,959
Total 3,741 2,959
Note: Refer below notes for details.

12 Borrowings (continued) N
Notes:

1) A series FCD have been issued at par carrying an interest rate of 12% per annum. These are mandatorily convertible to into Class C equity shares at the
expiry of 20 years from the date of its issue i.e. March 09, 2016, however the Company may at any time prior to the expiry of 20 years convert the A series
FCD into Class C equity shares. 1 (one) A Series FCD would be converted to 10 (Ten) Class C equity shares. The conversion of the A series FCD shall be
solely in accordance with the Investment Agreements and the Articles. The Company has offered to convert and/or redeem the instrument on March 31,
2024,

1) A series OCD have been issued at par carrving an interest rate of 12% per annum. These are mandatorily convertible to into Class B equity shares at the
expiry of 20 years from the date of its issue i.e. March 09, 2016, however the Company may at any time prior to the expiry of 20 years convert the A series
OCD into Class B equity shares. 1 (one) A Series OCD would be converted to 10 (Ten) Class B equity shares. The conversion of the A series OCD shall
be solely in accordance with the Investment Agreements and the Articles. The Company has offered to convert and/or redeem the instrument on March 31,
2024.

iii) A11 series FCD have been issued at par carrying an interest rate of 12% per annum. These are mandatorily convertible to into Class C equity shares at the
expiry of 20 years from the date of its issue i.e. January 27, 2017, however the Company may at any time prior to the expiry of 20 years convert the A1]
series FCD into Class C equity shares. 1 (one) A11 Series FCD would be converted to 10 (Ten) Class C equity shares. The conversion of the A1l series
FCD shall be solely in accordance with the Investment Agreements and the Articles. The Company has offered to convert and/or redeem the instrument on
March 31, 2024.

iv) All series OCD have been issued at par carrying an interest rate of 12% per annum. These are mandatorily convertible to into Class B equity shares at the
expiry of 20 years from the date of its issue i.e. January 27, 2017, however the Company may at any time prior to the expiry of 20 years convert the A1l
series OCD into Class B equity shares. 1 (one) A11 Series OCD would be converted to 10 (Ten) Class B equity shares. The conversion of the A11 series
OCD shall be solely in accordance with the Investment Agreements and the Articles. The Company has offered to convert and/or redeem the instrument on
March 31, 2024,

v) Al12 series FCD have been issued at par carrying an interest rate of 12% per annum. These are mandatorily convertible to into Class C equity shares at the
expiry of 20 years from the date of its issue i.e. April 06, 2017, however the Company may at any time prior to the expiry of 20 years convert the A12
series FCD into Class C equity shares. 1 (one) A12 Series FCD would be converted to 10 (Ten) Class C equity shares. The conversion of the A12 series
FCD shall be solely in accordance with the Investment Agreements and the Articles. The Company has offered to convert and/or redeem the instrument on
March 31, 2024,

vi) A12 series OCD have been issued at par carrying an interest rate of 12% per annum. These are mandatorily convertible to into Class B equity shares at the
expiry of 20 years from the date of its issue ie. April 06, 2017, however the Company may at any time prior 1o the expiry of 20 years convert the A12
series OCD into Class B equity shares. 1 (one) A12 Series OCD would be converted to 10 (Ten) Class B equity shares. The conversion of the A12 series
OCD shall be solely in accordance with the Investment Agreements and the Articles. The Company has offered to convert and/or redeem the instrument on
March 31, 2024.
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12 Borrowings (continued)

vii} A series NCD have been issued at par carrying an interest rate of 12% per annum. These are non-convertible and mandatorily redeemable at the expiry of
5 years from the date of its issue i.e., April 24, 2019. The redemption of A Series NCD shall be solely in accordance with the provisions of the NCD
agreement.

viit) B series NCD have been issued at par carrying an interest rate of 12% per annum. These are non-convertible and mandatorily redeemable at the expiry of
5 years from the date of its issue i.e., February 17, 2020, The redemption of B Series NCD shall be solely in accordance with the provisions of the NCD
agreement.

ix) B (1) series NCD have been issued at par carrying an interest rate of 12% per annum. These are non-convertible and mandatorily redeemable at the expiry
of 5 years from the date of its issue i.e., August 27, 2020. The redemption of B (1) Series NCD shall be solely in accordance with the provisions of the
NCD agreement.

x) B (I1) series NCD have been issued at par carrying an interest rate of 12% per annum. These are non-convertible and mandatorily redeemable at the expiry
of 5 years from the date of its issue i.e., January 16, 2021. The redemption of B (II) Series NCD shall be solely in accordance with the provisions of the
NCD agreement

xi) C series NCD have been issued at par carrying an interest rate of 12% per annum. These are non-convertible and mandatorily redeemable at the expiry of
5 years from the date of its issue i.e., May 18, 2021. The redemption of C Series NCD shall be solely in accordance with the provisions of the NCD
agreement.

xi1) Term loan from banks

- Term loan from banks are primarily secured by way of equitable mortgage of project land, building. movable property, plant and equipment and
investment property and charge on deposits and future lease rentals. The loans carry interest rate in the range of 7-9% and are repayable in 156 monthly
instalments commencing from June 2021 to June 2034.

xiii) There are no sanctioned working capital limits from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current asscts during any point of time of the
vear ended March 31, 2023 and March 31 2022.

xiv) As explained above, the Company has outstanding FCD, OCD and NCD (collectively, ‘Debentures’) aggregating to Rs.82,520 lakhs carrving an interest
rate of 12% per annum. During the year ended March 31. 2023, the Company and the debenture-holders modified the terms of the Debentures thereby
making it interest-free for the period July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023. Consequently, the Company remeasured the Debentures as at July 1, 2022 at
Rs.73,232 lakhs with a corresponding credit to “Other contribution by shareholders™ under Other Equity amounting to Rs.6,583 lakhs (net of deferred tax
liability of Rs.2,705 lakhs).

13 Other financial liabilities

Non-current Current
March 31,2023 March 31,2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Lease deposits 998 2,560 2,487 34
Capital creditors

- Payable to related parties (note 29) - - 338 119

- Payable to other parties (refer note 28(c)(i1) - - 2,367 8.567
Interest accrued and not due

- Payable to related parties (note 29) - - 35,802 39,598

78 143

Other payables - -
Total other financial liabilities 998 2,560 41,072 48,461
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14  Income Tax

14.1 Deferred tax liabilities, net

Deferred tax liabifities:

Deferred tax on accounting for compound financial instruments, net

14.2 Deferred tax assets, net

Deferred tax ltabilities:

Tax effect of difference in written down value of fixed assets for tax purpose and financial reporting purpose
Tax effect of revenue recognition (net of expenses) under Ind AS 116

Tax effect of accounting for compound financial instruments

Gross deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax assets:

Tax effect of expenditure charged to P&L in a vear but allowed for tax purposes in subsequent years
Unused tax losses - unabsorbed depreciation*

Tax effect of adoption of amendments to Ind AS 37

Tax effect of revenue recognition (net of expenses) under Ind AS 115

Gross deferred tax assets

Net deferred tax assets
b) Tax expense

Profit or loss section
Current tax
Current income tax charge
Deferred tax
Income Tax expense reported in the Statement of profit or loss

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate:

Accounting profit/(loss) before income tax

Tax on accounting profit/(loss) at statutory income tax rate of 29.12% (March 31, 2022: 29.12%)
Effect of first time recognition of deferred tax
Tax effect of temporary differences not recognised

Tax expense reported in the Statement of profit or loss
Reconciliation of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (net):

Opening balance

Deferred tax credit / (charge) during the year recognised in profit or loss

Deferred tax credit / (chargze) during the vear recognised in Other equity:

(1) Deferred tax on compound financial instruments [refer note 12(xiv)]

(i1) Deferred tax on impact of adoption of amendments to Ind AS 37 (refer note 17)
Closing balance of deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

3,234 -
1.274 -

710 =
5,218 -

277 -
5479 -

145 -
1,091 -
6,992 o

1.774 =

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

46 15
(4.338) -
(4.292) 15

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

(9.734) (15.165)
(2,835) (4.416)
(1,457) =

= 4,431
(4,292) 15

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(4) (4)
4338 -

(2,705) =
145 2
1,774 )
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Notes:

1. Amount of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) not recognised in the balance sheet:

- Potential tax benefit @ 29.12% of accumulated tax losses (business loss)** 2,347 2,347
- Potential tax benefit @ 29.12% of accumulated tax losses (unabsorbed depreciation)® - 5272
- Potential tax benefit @ 29.12% of other temporary differences (net) - (3,813)

*The unused tax losses towards unabsorbed depreciation can be carried forward for an indefinite period.

**The unused tax losses towards business loss can be carried forward for a maximum period of eight assessment years immediately succeeding the
assessment vear in which the loss was first computed and would expire if not utilised starting from financial year 2024-25 1o 2029-30. As assessed by the
management the above is not expected to be utilised before expiry and hence, no deferred tax has been recognised on the same as at March 31, 2023,

2. The Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 ('the Ordinance’) provides an option to domestic companies to pay income-tax at a lower rate of
29.12% instead of the normal rate of 29.12%, if it opts for not availing of certain specified exemptions or incentives. The Company has made an
assessment of the impact of the Ordinance and has decided to not opt for the lower tax rate of 29.12%. Consequently, the Company has continued to
measure the current and deferred taxes at the normal rate of 29.12%.

3. As at March 31, 2022, based on the assessment made by the Company, no deferred tax on unused tax losses and other temporary differences were
recognised by the Company since it was not probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the aforesaid deferred tax could be utilised.
As at March 31, 2023, consequent to change in tax position adopted by the Company and re-assessment of unrecognised deferred tax thereon, deferred tax
on unused tax losses and other temporary differences have been recognised by the Company to the extent it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the aforesaid deferred tax can be utilised.

14.3 Assets for current tax (net)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Assets for current tax (net) 2,345 753
2,345 753

14.4 Liabilities for current tax (net)

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Liabilities for current tax (net) - 27

= 27
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15 Trade payables - Current

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note below) 108 1
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
- Payable to related parties (note 29) 694 518
- Payable to other parties 1.198 1,273

2,000 1.792

Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier 108 1
The amount of interest due and remaining unpaid to any supplier - -
The amount of interest paid by the Company along with the amount of the payments made to the supplier beyond the - -
appointed day.
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond - -
the appointed day during the vear).

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year. - -
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable for the earlier years. - -

Note: The above disclosure has been made based on the information available with the Company.
Trade Payable Ageing Schedule:

As at March 31, 2023

Unbilled Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total

Particulars <6 6 Months 1-2 vears 2-3 years >3 years
Months -1 Year

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises - 108 - - - - 108
and small enterprises

Total outstanding dues of creditors other

than micro enterprises and small

enterprises

- Payable to related parties - 694 - 694
- Payable to other parties 341 809 12 H 23 ) 1,198
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and -

small enterprises

Disputed dues of creditors other than micro - - - - B - -
enterprises and small enterprises

341 1611 12 8 23 5 2,000

As at March 31, 2022

Unbilled Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total

Particulars <6 6 Months - 2 . More than 3

Months 1 Year 54 Yo . years
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises - 1 - - - - 1
and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small
enterprises
- Payable to related parties - 77 428 10
- Payable to other parties 310 186 471 250
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and -
small enterprises
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro - = = 2 - - -
enterprises and small enterprises

518
44 1,273

L
"

310 264 899 260 15 44 1,792

Break up of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Non current borrowings (note 12) 139,734 142,674
Current Borrowings (note 12) 3,741 2,959
Trade payables (current) (note 17) 2,000 1,792
Other current financial liabilities (note 13) 41,072 48,461
Other non- current financial liabilities (note 13) 998 2.560
Total financial liabilities carried at amortised cost 187,545 198.446
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Other current liabilities

Non-current Current
March 31. 2023 March 31. 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Deferred revenue (refer note 18) - - 47,721 25,868
Lease income received in advance 151 281 323 295
Statutory dues payable - - 86 313
Others - - 116 116
151 28] 48.246 26.592

Short term provisions

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Provision for onerous contracts® 1.453 930
1,453 930
*Represents provision made towards contracts in which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received under it.

Details of provision for onerous contracts is as below: March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 930 780
Add: Impact of adoption of amendments to Ind AS 37 500 -
Add: Provision made during the year 23 150
Balance at the end of the year 1,453 930

Adoption of amendments to Ind AS 37

An onerous contract is a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected
1o be received under it. The amendments specify that when assessing whether a contract is onerous or loss-making, an entity needs to include costs that
relate directly to a contract to provide goods or services including both incremental costs and an allocation of costs directly related to contract activities.

Prior to the application of the amendments, the Company had identified certain contracts as being onerous as the unavoidable costs under the contracts,
which were the costs of fulfilling them, comprised only incremental costs directly related to the contracts. As a result of the d . the Company
assessed whether certain other directly related costs are required to be included by the Company in determining the costs of fulfilling the contracts. In
accordance with the transitional provisions, the Company applies the amendments to contracts for which it has not vet fulfilled all of its obligations, at the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments (the date of initial application) and has not restated its comparative
information.

Pursuant to adoption of the Ind AS 37 amendments, as at April 1, 2022, the Company has recognised Rs.500 lakhs as onerous contract provision, Rs.145
lakhs as deferred tax asset and Rs.355 lakhs as reduction in retained camings. There is no significant impact of the aforesaid amendment during the vear
ended March 31, 2023
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Revenue from operations

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Revenue from contracts with customers

-Revenue from maintenance services - 33

- 33

Income from leasing 11,899 10,495
11,899 10,528

Disaggregated revenue information

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company’s revenue from contracts with customers by timing of transfer of goods or
Services:

Revenue from contracts with customers

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue from maintenance services - Recognised over time - 33
- 33

Contract balances

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Trade receivables from contracts under Ind AS 115 1,245 2.806
Contract liabilities
- Advance from customers i H:
- Deferred Revenue 47,721 25,868
48,966 28,674

Trade receivables are generally on credit terms based on schedule of upto 30 days.
Contract liabilities include advances received from customers as well as deferred revenue representing transaction price allocated to
unsatisfied performance obligations,

Performance obligations

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to the performance obligations that
are unsatisfied as of the end of the current year *

Revenue to be recognised at a point in time 47,721 25,868
* The entity expects to satisfy the performance obligations when (or as) the control of the underlying real estate units would be
transferred to the customers.

Assets recognised from the costs to obtain or fulfil a contract with a customer

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Inventories
- Work-in-progress 52,184 42,007
Prepaid expenses (represents brokerage costs pertaining to sale of real estate units) 2,032 1,161

Other income

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost:

Bank deposits 997 321
Liabilities no longer required written back 13 E
Miscellaneous income 57 11

1,193 332
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20 Cost of project materials consumed

March 31. 2023 March 31, 2022

Inventories at the beginning of the vear 2 -
Add: Purchases during the year 413 202
415 202
Less: Inventories at the end of the vear (65) (2)
Cost of project materials consumed 350 200

21 (Increase)/ decrease in inventories of work-in-progress

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Inventories at the beginning of the year

Work-in-progress 42,007 34,031
(A) 42.007 34.031
Inventories at the end of the vear
Work-in-progress 52,184 42,007
(B) 52.184 42.007
Total (A-B) (10.177) {7.976)

22 Employee benefits expense

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Salaries, wages and bonus 16 13
16 3

23 Finance costs

March 31. 2023  March 31, 2022

Interest charges

On bank borrowings 4970 4,315
On debentures (refer note 29) 9.330 9.827
On CCPS (refer note 29) 2 2
On lease deposits 333 452
On others - 12
Other borrowing costs 109 72
14,744 14,680

Less : Interest capitalised (330) (203)

Total* 14414 14,477

* Gross of interest of Rs. 2,024 lakhs (March 31, 2022: Rs. 2.069 lakhs) inventorised to qualifying work in progress.

24 Depreciation and amortization expense

March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 3.1) 2

Depreciation of investment property (refer note 3.2) 8,705 9,945
Amortization of intangible assets (refer note 4) 100 100
8.807 10.045
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25 Other expenses

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Legal and professional charges 307 480
Payments to auditors 24 22
Architect & consultancy fees 187 182
Lease oversight fees 370 177
Development co-ordination Fee 399 287
Power and fuel 139 483
Repairs and maintenance:

Building - 15
Insurance 31 44
Rates and taxes 522
Property tax 103 78
Advertisement and sales promotion 48 199
Travelling and conveyance 60 41
Communication costs 2 8
Provision for onerous contract 23 150
Brokerage and commission 903 824
Printing and stationery 17 7
Directors' sitting fees (refer note 29) 3 5
Security Charges 27 15
Miscellaneous expenses 12 7

2.719 3.546
(i) Payment to auditors (excluding Goods and Service tax): March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
As auditor:
Audit fee 13 13
Limited review 0 8
Other services - 1
Out of pocket expenses 1 i
24 22
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26 Ratio Analysis

a. Ratio
Numerator
Denominator

Current Ratio
Current Assets
Current Liabilities

Ratios/ Measures March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current Assets (A) 80,549 57.824
Current Liabilities (B) 96,512 80,761
Current Ratio (C) =(A) /(B) 0.83 0.72
% Change from previous vear 17%

b. Ratio Debt Equity Ratio

Numerator Total Debt [represents non-current borrowings (including current maturities) + interest accrued on
borrowings]

Denominator Shareholder's equity [represents total equity]
Ratios/ M es March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Total debt (A) 179,277 185,231
Shareholder's equity (B) (4,503) (5.289)
Debt equity ratio (C )= (A} /(B) (39.81) (35.02)
% Change from previous vear -14%

¢. Ratio Debt service coverage ratio
Numerator Earnings available for debt service
Denominator Debt service
Ratios/ M res March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Profit (loss)/before tax (9,734) (15,165)
Add: Finance cost 14,414 14,477
Less: Finance costs inventorised (2,024) (2,069)
Earnings for debt service (A) 2,656 (2,75T)
Repayment of non-current borrowings 3,264 18,734
Total Finance cost 14414 14,477
Debt service (B) 17,678 33.211
Debt service coverage ratio (C) = (A) / (B) 0.15 (0.08)
% Change from previous year 281%
Note: The variance in debt service coverage ratio is primarily on account of reduction in loss for the year and repayment of borrowings.

d. Ratio Return on equity [%a]
Numerator Loss after tax
Denominator Average Shareholder’s Equity
Ratios/ Measures March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Profit/(Loss) after tax (A) (5,442) (15,180)
Opening shareholder's equity (B) (5,289) 9,891
Closing shareholder's equity (C) (4,503) (5,289)
Average shareholder's equity [{(B)+(C)}/2] (D) (4,896) 2,301
Return on equity [%] (E) = (A)/(D)*100 111% -660%
% Change from previous vear -117%

Note: The variance in ROE is primarily on account of accumulation of losses and consequent reduction in shareholder’s equity.
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e. Ratio Inventory turnover ratio
Numerator Cost of sales [Sub-contractor cost + Cost of project materials consumed = (Increase)/ decrease in
inventeries of work-in-progress + finance cost and other expenses inyentorised]
Denominator Average inventory
Ratios/ Measures March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Cost of sales (A) = =
Opening Inventory (B) 42,009 34,031
Closing Inventory (C) 52,249 42,009
Average inventory [ {(B)+(C)}/2] (D) 47,129 38,020
Inventory turnover ratio (E) = (A)/(D) - -
% Change from previous vear -
f. Ratio Trade receivables turnover ratio
Numerator Revenue from operations
Denominator Average trade receivables
Ratios/ Measures March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue from operations (A) 11,899 10,528
Opening Trade Receivables (B) 3,957 909
Closing Trade Receivables (C) 1,248 3,957
Average Trade Receivables [ {(B}(C )1/21(D) 2,603 2433
Trade receivables turnover ratio (E) = (A) /(D) 4.57 4.33
% Change from previous vear 6%
g. Ratio Trade payables turnover ratio
Numerator Total purchases (represents purchase of goods and services which is the aggregate of sub-contractor cost,
purchases of project materials and other expenses)
Denominator Average trade payables
Ratios/ M res March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Total purchases (A) 9,829 9.468
Opening Trade Payables (B) 1.792 1,682
Closing Trade Payables (C) 2,000 1,792
Average Trade Payables [ {(B)+(C)}/2] (D) 1.896 1,737
Trade payables turnover ratio (E) = (A) /( D) 5.18 5.45
% Change from previous year -5%
h. Ratio Net capital turnover ratio
Numerator Revenue from operations
Denominator Working capital (represents Current Assets - Current Liabilities)
Ratios/ Measures March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue from operations (A) 11,899 10,528
Working Capital (B) (15,963) (22,937)
Net capital turnover ratio (C ) = (A)/ (B) (0.75) (0.46)
% Change from previous year 62%

Note: The change is on account of increase in deferred revenue and consequent reduction in working capital.
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i. Ratio Net profit ratio [%)]
Numerator Profit/(Loss) for the year
Denominator Revenue from operations
Ratios/ Measures March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Profit/(Loss) for the year (A) (5,442) (15,180)
Revenue from operations (B) 11,899 10,528
Net profit [%] (C) = (A) / (B}*100 -46% -144%
% Change from previous year 68%

Note: The ration has changed primarily on account of reduction in loss for the year.

j- Ratio Return on capital employed [%]
Numerator Earning before interest and taxes
Denominator Capital Employed (represents Total equity + Total borrowings+ Interest acerued on borrowings)
Ratios/ Measures March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Profit/(Loss) for the year (A) (5,442) (15,180)
Add: Total tax expense (B) 4,292) 15
Add: Finance costs (C) 14,414 14,477
Earnings before interest and tax (D) = (A) + (B) + (C) 4,680 (688)
Total equity (E) (4.503) (5,289)
Current and Non-current borrowing (F) 143,475 145,633
Interest accrued on borrowings (G) 35,802 39,598
Capital Employed (H) = (E) + (F) +<(G) 174,774 179,942
Return on capital employed [%] (I) = (D) / (H)*100 2.68% -0.38%
% Change from previous year 800%

Note: The ration has changed primarily on account of reduction in loss for the year.

Note: Return on investment ratio is not applicable to the Company.
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i)

iii}

)

28

Earnings/(Loss) per share ("EPS')

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the (loss)/profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the (loss)/profit attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity
shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Class A Class B Class C Class A ClassB  Class C
Nominal value of equity share (in Rs.) 10 10 10 10 10 10
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding (Nos. in lakhs.)
Basic (A) 1 623 622 1 623 622
Add: Potential equity shares upon conversion of:
-CCPS - - 2 - - 2
(B) - - 2z - - 2
Diluted* (AYHB) 1 623 624 1 623 624
Profit/(Loss) considered for the calculation of earnings per share
Loss for the year (C) - (2,775) (2,667) - (7.742)  (7.438)
Earnings Per Share (C)(A)
Basic - (4.45) (4.29) - (12.43) (11.96)
Diluted * - (4.45) (4.29) - (1243)  (11.96)

* During the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31. 2022, the effects of potential equity shares are anti-dilutive, hence, the same has been ignored for
calculating dilutive loss per share,

Commitments and contingencies

a. Leases

Operating lease commitments - Company as a lessor

The Company has entered into operating leases (cancellable and non-cancellable) on its investment property portfolio consisting of certain office buildings
with varying lease terms of upto eight years and with escalation and renewal clauses. All leases include a clause to enable upward revision of the lease
rental on periodical basis. The Company is also required to maintain the property over the lease term.

Lease rentals recognised as an income in the statement of profit and loss

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Income from leasing 11.899 10.495

Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Particulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Within one year 14,154 12,122

After one year but not more than five years 2.518 14.761
16.672 26.883

b. Other Commitments
(1) For commitments under Investor Agreements to equity shareholders, preference shareholders and debenture holders, refer note 10 and note 12.

(i1) As at March 31, 2023, the estimated amount of contracts (net of capital advance) remaining to be executed on capital account not provided for was Rs.
62 lakhs (March 31, 2022: Rs. 969 lakhs).

c. Contingent liabilities

(1) The Company had received a legal notice from a vendor demanding payment of compensation of Rs.1,214 lakhs for procuring maximum permissible
Floor Space Index for development of land parcels procured from such vendor. The Company does not expect any payment in respect of the aforesaid
obligation/ claim and it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the same and hence, no provision has been made in the
financial statements in this regard.

(ii) The Company had received notice from the income tax department for the assessment year 2016-17 and 2018-19 resulting in demand of Rs. 27 lakhs
and Rs.46 lakhs respectively. Subsequently, the Company made full payment of the demand amount including interest. The management is of the opinion
that the aforesaid matter will not have any further impact on the financial statements of the Company.

(ii1) The amount of outstanding bank guarantees as at the year-end is Rs. 2,470 lakhs (March 31, 2022: Rs. 3,904 lakhs).

(iv) The Code on Social Security, 2020 (*Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post employment benefits received Presidentiai
assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been
notified and the final rules/interpretation have not yet been issued. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will
record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective.
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29 Related Party disclosures

L. Names of related parties and related party relationship with whom transactions have been entered into:

Holding company Brigade Enterprises Ltd ['BEL]
Enterprise having significant influence over  Reco Caspia Pte Ltd [RCPL1
the Company Reco Iris Pte Lid [RIPL]
Fellow Subsidiary Brigade Hotel Ventures Ltd. [BHVL]
Brigade Hospitality Services Ltd. [BHSLT]
SRP Prosperita Hotel Ventures Ltd. [SRPPHVL']
BCV developers Pvt. Ltd. [BCVDPL1
WTC Trades & Projects Pvt Ltd ['WTCPL']
Brigade Properties Pvt. Ltd. [BPPLT]
Directors Meera Krishnakumar
Mohan Parvatikar
Additional related parties as per Companies  Rashmi B V, Company Secretary & Chief Financial Officer
Act, 2013 Thirumanan R, Manager
IL. Transactions with related parties:
Description of the nature of transaction | Name of related party Description of the relationship Mar 31, 2023 | Mar 31, 2022
Allotment of Non-Convertible Debentures  |BEL Holding Company - 2,500
RIPL Enterprise having significant influence over - 2.500
the Company
Interest on Debentures (also refer note 12)  |BEL Holding Company 4,665 4914
RCPL Enterprise having significant influence over 2912 3,091
the Company
RIPL Enterprise having significant influence over 1,752 1,822
the Company
Interest on compulsorily convertible RCPL Enterprise having significant influence over 2 2
preference shares the Company
Development co-ordination fees (includes BEL Holding Company 529 786
amount capitalised)
Lease oversight fees BEL Holding Company 370 177
Brokerage and commission* BEL Holding Company 91 266
Sales commission (prepaid expenses) BEL Holding Company 378 352
Legal and professional charges BEL Holding Company 253 333
Expenses charged to the company SRPPHVL Fellow Subsidiary 8 6
BFPL Fellow Subsidiary 3 -
BHVL Fellow Subsidiary 1 -
WTCPL Fellow Subsidiary 12 51
Expenses charged by the company WTCFL Fellow Subsidiary - 245
BEL Holding Company 4 -
Salaries, wages and bonus Rashmi BV Key M ial Personnel 16 13
Directors' sitting fees Meera Krishnakumar Director 2 2
Mohan Parvatikar Director 2 2

*Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease. Also refer note 3.1
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I11. Balances with related parties :

Description of the nature of transaction | Name of related party Description of the relationship Mar 31,2023 | Mar 31, 2022
Debentures Outstanding - OCD BEL Holding Company 25,007 25,765
|(also refer note 12)

Debentures Outstanding - FCD RCPL Enterprise having significant influence over 24998 25,755
(also refer note 12) the Company
Debentures Outstanding - NCD BEL Holding Company 15,044 15,500
{also refer note 12)
Debentures Outstanding - NCD RIPL Enterprise having significant influence over 15,044 15,500
(also refer note 12) the Company
Equity Component of CCPS RCPL Enterprise having significant influence over 10 10
the Company
Debt Component of CCPS RCPL Enterprise having significant influence over 9 9
the Cc
Interest accrued but not due BEL Holding Company 18,391 20,280
RCPL Enterprise having significant influence over 14,022 16,362
the Compa_ny
RIPL Enterprise having significant influence over 3,389 2,946
the Company
Capital creditors BEL Holding Company 338 119
Trade Pavables BEL Holding Company 691 518
WTCPL Fellow Subsidiary 3 -
Notes:

1. The related party transactions made by the Company are on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transaction. Outstanding balances at the
year end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables.

2. In respect of the transactions with the related parties, the company with the provisions of section 177 and 188 of companies act,

and the details have been disclosed above, as required by the applicable accounting standard.

3. Legal and professional charges includes reimbursement of remuneration to Mr. Thirumanan R, Manager - Rs. 16 lakhs. (March 31.

2013 where applicable,

2022: Rs. 17 Lakhs),
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30 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to
finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include trade. other receivables and cash and cash equivalents that
derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s management oversees the management of these risks and
ensures that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified,
measured and managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives.

i. Market risk

Market nisk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market
risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate risk and other price tisk, such as equity price risk and commeodity/ real-estate risk.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Company’s financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt
obligations with floating interest rates.

The Company is affected by the price volatility of certain commodities/ real estate. Its operating activities require the ongoing development of real
estate, The Company’s management has developed and enacted a risk management strategy regarding commodity/ real estate price risk and its
mitigation. The Company is subject to the price risk variables, which are expected to vary in line with the prevailing market conditions.

Interest rate sensitivity
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact
on the entity’s profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of financial assets and liabilities.

Particnlars Change in interest |  Effect on lnss
rate before tax
March 31, 2023 +1% 618
-1% (618)
March 31, 2022 +1% 584
-1% (584)

ii. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments if a counterparty defaults on its obligations. The Company’s
exposure to credit risk arises majorly from financial assets and trade receivables,

Other financial assets like bank balances are mostly with banks and the Company does not expect any credit risk with respect to these financial
assets.

With respect to other financial assets, the Company has constituted teams to review the receivables on periodic basis and to take necessary
mitigations, wherever required. The Company creates allowance for all unsecured receivables based on lifetime expected credit loss. At the balance
sheet date, there was no significant concentration of credit risk and exposure thereon,

iii. Liquidity Risk
The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of debentures and bank
borrowings. The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Maturity period March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Financial liabilities - Current

Borrowings - Bank borrowings Within 1 year 9.081 7.319

Trade payables Within 1 vear 2,000 1,792

Other financial liabilities Within 1 year 41,072 48,461
Financial liabilities - Non Current

Borrowings - Bank borrowings Between 1-15 years 87.946 87.173

Borrowings - other borrowings Between 1-5 vears 89 444 107,201

Other financial liabilities (Lease deposits) Between 1-5 years 3.799 3,183
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Fair values
The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used o estimate the fair values:

> Refer note 3.2 with respect to investment properties.

> Refer note 3.3 with respect to investment properties under construction,

> The management assessed that the carrying values of cash and bank balances, trade receivables. trade payables, and other financial assets and
liabilities approximate their fair values largely due to their short-term maturities.

= The management assessed that the carrying values of bank deposits, borrowings and other financial assets and liabilities approximate their fair
values based on cash flow discounting using parameters such as interest rates. tenure of instrument, creditworthiness of the customer and the risk
characteristics of the financed project, as applicable.

These financial assets and financial labilities are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs
as explained above.

There have been no transfers between levels during the vear.

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments:

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Carrving Value Fair Value (Level 3) Carrvi_ng Value Fair Value (Level 3)
Financial Assets
Measured at at amortised cost
Trade receivables 1,248 1,248 3,957 3,957
Cash and cash equivalents 5,861 5.861 3,825 3,825
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 14,771 14,771 5.343 5,343
Other financial assets 7,186 7.186 10,885 10,885

Assets for which fair value disclosed
Measured at cost
Investment property (including under construction) 143,440 210,883 151,833 209,081

Financial Liabilities
Measured at at amortised cost

Non-current borrowings 139,734 139,734 142,674 142674
Current borrowings 3,741 3,741 2,959 2959
Trade payables 2,000 2,000 1,792 1,792
Other financial liabilities 42.070 42,070 51,021 51,021

Capital management

The Company’s objectives of capital management is to maximize the shareholder value. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Company may adjust the retum to shareholders, issue/ buyback shares or sell assets to reduce debt. The Company manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity plus net debt as below.

- Equity includes equity share capital and all other equity components attributable to the equity holders

- Net Debt includes borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities, less cash and cash equivalents & bank balances other than cash and cash
equivalents

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Borrowings 139,734 142 674
Trade pavables 2,000 1,792

Other financial liabilities 42,070 51,021

Less: Cash and cash equivalents & bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (20,632) (9,168)
Net Debt (A) 163,171 186,319
Equity share capital 12,457 12,457
Other equity (16.960) (17,746)
Equity (B) (4.503) (5,289)
Equity plus net debt (C=A+B) 158,669 181,030
Gearing ratio(D=A/C) 103% 103%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants
attached to the interest-bearing borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Any significant breach in meeting the financial covenants would
allow the bank 1o call borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of above-mentioned interest-bearing borrowings,

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the current and previous years,
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33 Unhedged foreign currency exposure

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Trade payables 5 -
Capital creditors - -
Total _ -

Note: The Company is carrying liabilities towards Borrowings of Rs. 41,264 lakhs (March 31, 2022: Rs.41.264 lakhs) and Interest on borrowings of Rs.
17,411 lakhs (March 31, 2022: Rs.19,308 lakhs). which are payable to foreign parties. As per the contractual terms, the said liabilities are denominated in
Indian Rupees and will be settled in equivalent Foreign Currency. Hence, such liabilities on the balance sheet will have no impact on profit and loss
account of the Company due to movement in foreign exchange rates and accordingly, these are not disclosed above by the Company as foreign currency
exposure.

34 Segment Reporting
For management purposes, the Company is organised into 2 Strategic Business Units (SBUs) based on risks and rates of return of the products and services
offered by those SBUs as per Ind AS 108 as follows:

- Real Estate; development and sale of real estate property
- Leasing: development and leasing of commercial property

The management reviews operating results of SBUs separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Also, the Company's financing activities (including finance costs and finance income) and income taxes are managed at corporate level and are not
allocated to operating segments.

Transfer prices between operating segments are on an arm'’s length basis in a manner similar to transactions with third parties.

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Real Estate Leasing Total Real Estate Leasing Total

Revenue from operations - 11,899 11,899 - 10,528 10,528
Add: Other income - unallocable - - 1.193 - - 332
Total income E 11,899 13,092 = 10,528 10.860
Segment Profit/ (Loss) 268 1,335 1,603 (962) (1,642) (2,604)
Less: Finance costs (net of interest inventorised) (12,390 (12,408)
Less: Other unallocable expenditure (140) (485)
Add: Other income (including interest income) 1,193 332
Loss before tax (9.734) (15,165)
Segment assets 55,768 148,472 204,240 46,106 158,114 204,220
Add: Cash and bank balances 20,632 9,168
Add: Deferred tax assets (net) 1,774 -
Add: Assets for current tax(net) 2,345 753
Add: Other unallocable assets 3.901 6.850

232,892 220,991
Segment liabilities 51,252 6,664 57916 28,733 11,856 40,589
Add: Borrowings (including interest accrued) 179,277 185,231
Add: Deferred tax liabilities (net) - 4
Add: Liabilities for current tax (net) = 27
Add: Other unallocable liabilities 203 429

237,394 226,280
Other information
Capital expenditure 1,023 1,023 18,447 18,447

Capital expenditure consists of additions to capital work-in-progress/investment property under construction.

Current/Deferred taxes, borrowings and certain financial and non-financial assets and liabilities are considered as unallocated as they are also managed on
a Company basis.

The Company is domiciled in India and all the non-current assets of the Company are located in India,
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(i)
(i)

(iii)

(iv)
(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Standards issued but not yet effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 dated 31 March 2023 to
amend the following Ind AS which are effective from 01 April 2023,

(1) Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies and the correction of
errors. It has also been clarified how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023 and apply to changes in accounting policies and
changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of that period.

(i1) Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the requirement for entities to
disclose their “significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their “material” accounting policies and adding guidance on how
entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments to Ind AS 1 are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023, Conseguential amendments have been made
in Ind AS 107.

(iti) Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments to Ind AS 12

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise
to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

The amendments should be applied to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented. In addition,
at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented, a deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a
deferred tax liability should also be recognised for all deductible and taxable temporary differences associated with leases and decommissioning
obligations. Consequential amendments have been made in Ind AS 101.

The amendments to Ind AS 12 are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after | April 2023.

The Company is currently assessing the impact of the aforesaid amendments.

Other Statutory Information

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami
Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder,

The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of
Companies Act, 1956.

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is vet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediaries shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

No funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

The Company is not a declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other lender.

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Chartered Accountants Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited

ICAIFi gistraggon number: 101049W/E300004 ON.&,;

Mohan Parvatikar rindam Mukherjee
Director Director
DIN; 00235941 DIN: 08776424

Thirumanan R
Contpany Secretary and Chief Financial Manager
Officer

Membership no.: A38729

per Sud ar Jain
Partner
Membership no.: 213157

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 11, 2023 Date: May 11, 2023




